
 

   

Commission Meeting Agenda 
Thursday, May 23, 2019, 2 p.m. 

Chair: Richard Valle, Supervisor Alameda County District 2 Executive Director: Arthur L. Dao 
Vice Chair: Pauline Cutter, Mayor City of San Leandro Clerk of the 

Commission: 
Vanessa Lee 

 
1. Call to Order/Pledge of Allegiance   

2. Roll Call   

3. Public Comment   

4. Chair and Vice Chair Report  

5. Executive Director Report  

6. Consent Calendar Page/Action 

Alameda CTC standing committees approved all action items on the  
consent calendar, except Item 6.1 and 6.2. 

6.1. Approve April 25, 2019 Commission Meeting Minutes 1 A 

6.2. Approve Community Advisory Committee Appointments 5 A 

6.3. FY2018-19 Third Quarter Report of Claims Acted Upon Under the 
Government Claims Act 

11 I 

6.4. Approve 2018 Alameda CTC Annual Report 13 A 

6.5. Approve Alameda CTC FY2019-20 Proposed Budget 15 A 

6.6. Approve Alameda CTC FY2018-19 Third Quarter Consolidated  
Financial Report 

23 A 

6.7. Approve Measure B and Measure BB Sales Tax Budget Update for  
FY 2018-19 

29 A 

6.8. Approve Alameda CTC FY2018-19 Third Quarter Investment Report 31 A 

6.9. Approve Alameda CTC Investment Policy 49 A 

6.10. Approve Amendment No. 5 to Professional Services Agreement No.  
A13-0088 with Acumen Building Enterprise, Inc. for Planning, Policy, 
Communications and Administrative Support Services 

63 A 

6.11. I-580 Express Lanes (PN 1373.002): Monthly Operations Update 65 I 

6.12. Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of the Alameda 
CTC’s Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and 
General Plan Amendments 

75 I 

mailto:vlee@alamedactc.org
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.1_COMM_Commission_Meeting_Minutes_20190425v.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.2_COMM_Community_Advisory_Committee_Appointments_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.3_COMM_Government_Claims_Act_FY2018-19_3rd_Qtr_Report_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.3_COMM_Government_Claims_Act_FY2018-19_3rd_Qtr_Report_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.4_COMM_AlamedaCTC_Annual_Report_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.5_COMM_FY2019-20_Budget_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.6_COMM_FY18-19_3rd_Qtr_Financial-Report_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.6_COMM_FY18-19_3rd_Qtr_Financial-Report_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.7_COMM_FY18-19_Sales_Tax_Budget_Update_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.7_COMM_FY18-19_Sales_Tax_Budget_Update_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.8_COMM_FY18-19_Q3_Investment_Report_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.9_COMM_Investment_Policy_2019_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.10_COMM_Admin_Amendment_No5_to_ABE_PSA_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.10_COMM_Admin_Amendment_No5_to_ABE_PSA_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.10_COMM_Admin_Amendment_No5_to_ABE_PSA_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.11_COMM_I-580_PC_EL_Ops_Update_FebMarch2019Stats_20190523.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.12_COMM_EnvironmentalDocReview_20190523a.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.12_COMM_EnvironmentalDocReview_20190523a.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.12_COMM_EnvironmentalDocReview_20190523a.pdf


6.13. Route 84 Expressway Widening (PN 1210.002): Approve Project Actions 
for the Closeout Phase 

83 A 

7. Community Advisory Committee Reports (3-minute time limit)  

7.1. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee – Matthew Turner, Chair  I 

7.2. Independent Watchdog Committee – Steve Jones, Chair  I 

7.3. Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee – Sylvia Stadmire, Chair  I 

8. Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee Action Items  

The Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee approved the following action items, 
unless otherwise noted in the recommendations. 

8.1. Approve legislative positions and receive an update on federal, state, 
and local legislative activities 

93 A/I 

9. Closed Session  

9.1. Recess to Closed Session regarding Public Employment pursuant to 
Government Code section 54957; Title: Executive Director 

  

9.2. Reconvene to Open Session   

9.3. Closed Session Report / Action  I/A 

10. Member Reports  

11. Adjournment  

Next Meeting: May 30, 2019 Commission Retreat 

 

Notes:  
• All items on the agenda are subject to action and/or change by the Commission. 
• To comment on an item not on the agenda (3-minute limit), submit a speaker card to the clerk. 
• Call 510.208.7450 (Voice) or 1.800.855.7100 (TTY) five days in advance to request a sign-language interpreter. 
• If information is needed in another language, contact 510.208.7400. Hard copies available only by request. 
• Call 510.208.7400 48 hours in advance to request accommodation or assistance at this meeting. 
• Meeting agendas and staff reports are available on the website calendar. 
• Alameda CTC is located near 12th St. Oakland City Center BART station and AC Transit bus lines.  

Directions and parking information are available online. 

https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.13_COMM_SR-84_Closeout_20190523v.pd
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/6.13_COMM_SR-84_Closeout_20190523v.pd
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/8.1_COMM_LegislativeUpdate_May2019_20190523vv.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/05/8.1_COMM_LegislativeUpdate_May2019_20190523vv.pdf
http://www.alamedactc.org/events/month/now
https://www.alamedactc.org/about-us-committees/contact-us/


Alameda CTC Schedule of Upcoming Meetings for 
May 2019 through September 2019 

Commission and Committee Meetings 

Time Description Date 
9:30 a.m. Alameda CTC Commission Retreat May 30, 2019 

9:00 a.m. Finance and Administration 
Committee (FAC) 

June 10, 2019 
July 8, 2019 
September 9, 2019 9:30 a.m. I-680 Sunol Smart Carpool Lane

Joint Powers Authority (I-680 JPA)
10:00 a.m. I-580 Express Lane Policy

Committee (I-580 PC)
10:30 a.m. Planning, Policy and Legislation 

Committee (PPLC) 
12:00 p.m. Programs and Projects Committee 

(PPC) 
2:00 p.m. Alameda CTC Commission Meeting June 17, 2019  

(Tentative)          
July 25, 2019 
September 26, 2019 

Advisory Committee Meetings 

1:30 p.m. Alameda County Technical 
Advisory Committee (ACTAC) 

June 6, 2019 
June 27, 2019 
September 5, 2019 

1:30 p.m. Paratransit Advisory and Planning 
Committee (PAPCO) 

June 24, 2019 
September 23, 2019 

5:30 p.m. Independent Watchdog 
Committee (IWC) 

July 8, 2019 

5:30 p.m. Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory 
Committee (BPAC) 

September 5, 2019 

9:30 a.m. Paratransit Technical Advisory 
Committee (ParaTAC) 

September 10, 2019 

All meetings are held at Alameda CTC offices located at 1111 Broadway, 
Suite 800, Oakland, CA 94607. Meeting materials, directions and parking 
information are all available on the Alameda CTC website. 

Commission Chair 
Supervisor Richard Valle, District 2 

Commission Vice Chair 
Mayor Pauline Cutter, 
City of San Leandro 

AC Transit 
Board Vice President Elsa Ortiz 

Alameda County 
Supervisor Scott Haggerty, District 1 
Supervisor Wilma Chan, District 3 
Supervisor Nate Miley, District 4 
Supervisor Keith Carson, District 5 

BART 
Vice President Rebecca Saltzman 

City of Alameda 
Mayor Marilyn Ezzy Ashcraft 

City of Albany 
Mayor Rochelle Nason 

City of Berkeley 
Mayor Jesse Arreguin 

City of Dublin 
Mayor David Haubert 

City of Emeryville 
Councilmember John Bauters 

City of Fremont 
Mayor Lily Mei 

City of Hayward 
Mayor Barbara Halliday 

City of Livermore 
Mayor John Marchand 

City of Newark 
Councilmember Luis Freitas 

City of Oakland 
Councilmember At-Large  
Rebecca Kaplan 
Councilmember Sheng Thao 

City of Piedmont 
Mayor Robert McBain 

City of Pleasanton 
Mayor Jerry Thorne  

City of Union City 
Mayor Carol Dutra-Vernaci 

Executive Director 
Arthur L. Dao

https://www.alamedactc.org/get-involved/upcoming-meetings/


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 



 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Commission Meeting Minutes 
Thursday, April 25, 2019, 2 p.m. 6.1 

 
 
1. Pledge of Allegiance 

 
2. Roll Call 

A roll call was conducted. All members were present with the exception of Commissioner 
Marchand, Commissioner Miley, and Commissioner Freitas. 

Commissioner Narum was present as an alternate for Commissioner Thorne. Commissioner 
McQuaid was present as an alternate for Commissioner Carson. Commissioner Marquez 
was present as an alternate for Commissioner Halliday. 

Subsequent to the roll call: 
Commissioner Miley arrived during Item 5.  

3. Public Comment 
There were two public comments: 

Ken Bukowski commented on CASA compact legislative bills and the Metropolitan 
Transportation Commission (MTC) task force on the bills. Jonah Markowitz commented on 
East Bay Paratransit ADA services for passengers with Alzheimer. 

4. Chair and Vice Chair Report 
Chair Valle recognized the Safe Routes to School Platinum Sneaker Award Recipient and 
noted that he Platinum Sneaker Award is presented to the school in Alameda County 
that saw the greatest percentage increase of students using active and shared modes to 
travel to school during the two-week contest. 
 
Vice Chair Cutter announced that the winner of this year’s competition was San Leandro 
High School in San Leandro. She then invited the students, teachers, administrators and 
their Safe Routes to Schools site coordinator up to the dais to receive the Platinum 
Sneaker Award. 
 

5. Executive Director Report 
Art Dao noted that the ED report could be found in the Commissioners folders as well as 
on the Alameda CTC website. He noted that the significant goods movement project for 
23rd/29th Avenue is substantially complete and will be open to traffic later in the month. 
Mr. Dao also stated that he attended a community meeting for the MAZE project in 
Emeryville Community Center alongside Commissioner Bauters. Caltrans has subsequently 
suspended the project until further notice. He went on to state that staff hosted a 
meeting in Emeryville on April 24, 2019 regarding the San Pablo corridor project and he 
noted that the Bay Area Congestion Management Directors met with new MTC Executive 
Director Therese McMilan, at their last meeting. Mr. Dao concluded by reminding the 
Commissioners that May is Bike to Work/Bike to School Month.  
 

Page 1



Commissioner Cutter wanted to know who is responsible for maintenance on the 
Oakland portion of the East Bay Greenway. Mr. Dao noted that environmental clearance 
has been achieved and the design process has been initiated for the project. He noted 
that a consultant has come on board to appraise the corridor, and he stated that there is 
an agreement with the City of Oakland to maintain the Oakland portion of  
the East Bay Greenway.  
 
Commissioner Bauters thanked Alameda CTC staff, Alameda CTC Commission and the 
City of Emeryville for their support and work that was done regarding Caltrans proposed 
environmental documents for the MAZE project. He stated that Caltrans has paused the 
project and committed to more robust outreach. 
 
Tess Lengyel stated that the Commission retreat is scheduled for May 30, 2019 and 
provided brief details on the schedule for the day.  

6. Consent Calendar 
6.1. Approve the March 28, 2019 Commission Meeting Minutes 
6.2. Approval of Community Advisory Committee Appointment 
6.3. Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of the Alameda CTC’s Review 

and Comments on Environmental Documents and General Plan Amendments 
Update 

6.4. Approve the Active Transportation Program Resolution of Local Support and 
contract amendments for Safe Routes to Schools 

6.5. Bay Fair Connector Project Update 
6.6. Approve the State Transportation Assistance County Block Grant Distribution Formula 

and Lifeline Transportation Program Cycle 5 Update 
6.7. State Route 262 (Mission Boulevard) Cross Connector Project (PN 1472.000):  

Approval of Contract Amendment No. 1 to Professional Services Agreement A18-
0029 with HNTB Corporation 

6.8. Express Lanes Program (PN 1486002): Approval of Professional Services Agreement 
A19-0015 with C&M Associates, Inc. for Toll Revenue Forecasting Services 
 
Commissioner Cutter moved to approve the Consent calendar. Commissioner 
Saltzman seconded the motion. The motion passed with the following votes:   
 
Yes: Arreguin, Bauters, Cox, Cutter, Dutra-Vernaci, Ezzy Ashcraft, Haggerty, 

Haubert, Kaplan, Marquez, McBain, McQuaid, Mei, Miley, Narum, 
Nason, Ortiz, Saltzman, Thao, Valle 

No: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Marchand, Freitas 
 

7. Community Advisory Committee Reports 
7.1 Bicycle and Pedestrian Advisory Committee (BPAC) 

There was no one present from BPAC. 

7.2. Independent Watchdog Committee (IWC) 
There was no one present from IWC. 

Page 2



7.3. Paratransit Advisory and Planning Committee (PAPCO) 
There was no one present from PAPCO. 

8. Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee Action Items 
8.1. Federal, state, regional, and local legislative activities update 

Tess Lengyel stated that at the Planning, Policy and Legislation Committee (PPLC) 
meeting on April 8, 2019, PPLC recommended approval of the following positions on 
state bills to the full Commission: 
 
• AB 659 (Mullin D) Transportation: emerging transportation technologies: Support 

and include Alameda CTC staff as participants on the technology working group 
listed in the bill to develop program guidelines. 

 
• AB 1350 (Gonzalez D) Youth Transit Pass Pilot Program: Support and direct staff to 

work with the author’s office to clarify how funding will be added to the bill and 
what the methods of distribution will be.  In addition, work with UCLA, which is 
conducting a study on student transit pass programs across the state, to share 
information on Alameda CTC’s program.  

 
• SB 127 (Wiener D) Transportation funding: active transportation: complete streets:  

Support and seek amendments to allow for bicycle and pedestrian improvements 
to be funded within a half mile of a state highway corridor if a continuous and 
connected corridor is established as part of a corridor plan for bicycle and 
pedestrian facilities that cannot be most effectively accommodated within the 
state right of way.  

 
• SB 152 (Beall) Department of Motor Vehicles. Active Transportation Program (ATP). 

Support and seek clarification on a definition of transformative projects to ensure 
that despite a project’s size or cost, the outcomes of the project are determining 
factors for transformative projects. 

 
Commissioner Marquez moved to approve PPLC’s recommendations on the AB 659 
AB 1350, an SB 127.  Commissioner Mei seconded the motion. The motion passed 
with the following votes:  

Yes: Arreguin, Bauters, Cox, Cutter, Dutra-Vernaci, Ezzy Ashcraft, Haggerty, 
Haubert, Kaplan, Marquez, McBain, McQuaid, Mei, Miley, Narum, 
Nason, Ortiz, Saltzman, Thao, Valle 

No: None 
Abstain: None 
Absent: Marchand, Freitas 
 
SB 152 
Commissioner Saltzman noted that she will need to abstain from the vote on SB 152 
due to BART’s discussion on the bill.   
 
After discussion by the Commission on the bill, a motion was made by Commissioner 
Bauters to hold off on taking any action on the bill. Commissioner Cutter seconded 
the motion. The motion passed with the following vote:  

Page 3



 
Yes: Arreguin, Bauters, Cox, Cutter, Dutra-Vernaci, Ezzy Ashcraft, Haggerty, 

Haubert, Kaplan, Marquez, McBain, McQuaid, Mei, Miley, Narum, 
Nason, Ortiz, Thao, Valle 

No: None 
Abstain: Saltzman 
Absent: Marchand, Freitas 
 
SB 4 and SB 50 
Commissioner Bauters noted that the Commission approved working group met to 
discuss SB 4 and SB 50. He noted that there were several comments and 
recommendations made by the working group, and he would work with staff to 
create a letter to submit to the legislator after amendments to the bill are in print. 
Commissioner Bauters noted that there will be no formal position taken on the bill at 
this time. 
 
Commission Haubert moved to refer this item to staff to use the recommendations 
and comments made by the working group after amendments to the bill are in print. 
Commissioner Kaplan seconded the motion. The motion passed with the following 
votes: 
 
Yes: Arreguin, Bauters, Cox, Cutter, Dutra-Vernaci, Ezzy Ashcraft, Haggerty, 

Haubert, Kaplan, Marquez, McBain, McQuaid, Mei, Miley, Nason, Ortiz, 
Saltzman, Thao, Valle 

No: None 
Abstain: Narum  
Absent: Marchand, Freitas  
 
AB 1487 
Commissioner Bauters noted that the letter for AB 1487 related to jobs housing fee 
was sent to the legislator. Zack Wasserman noted that the Commission can create 
an ad-hoc lobbying working group to vet the item.  
 
Commissioner Bauters recommended that a small committee of the Commission 
meet with Assembly member Chui on the bill. Volunteers for the ad-hoc working 
group included Commissioner Mei, Commissioner Haubert, Commissioner Bauters, 
Commissioner Kaplan and Commissioner Arreguin. 
 

9. Recognition of Safe Routes to School Platinum Sneaker Award Recipient 
This item was taken during the Chair report.  
 

10. Member Reports 
There were no member reports. 
 

11. Adjournment 
The next meeting is Thursday, May 23, 2019 at 2:00 p.m. 

Page 4



6.2

Page 5



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 6



  

Alameda County Council of 

Leagues of Women Voters 

 

Alameda 

Berkeley Albany Emeryville 

Eden Area 

Fremont/Newark/Union City 

Oakland 

Piedmont 

 

 

 

May 13, 2019 

James Nguyen 

Alameda County Citizen’s Oversight Committee 

1000 San Leandro Blvd, Suite 800 

San Leandro, CA 94577 

Dear Mr. Nguyen: 

At the recent meeting of the Alameda County Council of Leagues of Women Voters (ACC LWV), we 

heartily endorsed our member Karina Ryan as our official representative on the Independent Watchdog 

Committee (IWC) of the Alameda County Transportation Commission. 

Karina will report to our Council on the progress of the IWC. She is knowledgeable and eager to keep us 

informed on county transportation issues. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

Cynthia Chen 

Chair, LWV Alameda County Council 

Page 7



Page 8



KARINA RYAN 
 

 
 
Alameda County Transportation Commission  
Independent Watchdog Committee Application 
 

I. Commission/Committee Experience 
○ I am currently a member of the Mayor’s Commission on Persons with Disabilities 

in the City of Oakland. As the caregiver to my adult brother with autism, it has 
been meaningful to participate in this Commission to advocate on behalf of 
people with intellectual and developmental disabilities.  

 
II. Statement of Qualifications 

○ I am interested in serving on the Independent Watchdog Committee because 
walking and AC Transit are my main modes of transportation. I attend Transport 
Oakland and AC Transit board meetings to understand better the complex 
transportation challenges facing my region. I am a strong supporter of public 
transit because of the benefits to the environment, personal finances, and public 
safety. I am deeply concerned about the competition between ride-hailing services 
and the AC Transit system for riders. As revenues and ridership decrease for AC 
Transit buses, there will be an increase in clogged traffic and air pollution. The 
decreased accessibility of public transportation will impact low-income 
communities of color and the disability community most detrimentally. I want to 
lend my voice to this critical discussion and help find solutions to improve access 
for underserved communities and enrich the lives of drivers who are struggling in 
the current environment. As an advocate for the disability community and a 
public transportation rider, I would bring valuable insights to the Independent 
Watchdog Committee with a focus on promoting equitable, transit-rich 
communities, and the needs of the disability community.  

 
III. Relevant Work or Volunteer Experience 

○ I am currently employed by the Kenneth Rainin Foundation (155 Grand Avenue, 
Suite 1000, Oakland, CA 94612) as the executive assistant to the chief executive 
officer. My professional background is in high-level administrative support, 
project management, government relations, and communications.  

○ I am a member of the League of Women Voters Oakland. I volunteer for the 
Clausen House Adult Education Program (650 Grand Avenue, Oakland, CA 
94610) and Sister District Project. 

 
IV. Please see my attached resume. 

Page 9



Page 10



 
 
 

 

 

Memorandum 6.3 

 

DATE: May 16, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM Patricia Reavey, Deputy Executive Director of Finance  

and Administration 

SUBJECT: FY2018-19 Third Quarter Report of Claims Acted Upon Under the 

Government Claims Act 

 

Recommendation 

This item is to provide the Commission with an update on the FY2018-19 Third Quarter Report 

of Claims Acted upon under the Government Claims Act. This item is for information only. 

Summary 

There were no actions taken by staff under the Government Claims Act during the third 

quarter of FY2018-19. 

Background 

Tort claims against Alameda CTC and other California government entities are governed 

by the Government Claims Act (Act).  The Act allows the Commission to delegate 

authority to an agency employee to review, reject, allow, settle, or compromise tort 

claims pursuant to a resolution adopted by the Commission.  If the authority is delegated 

to an employee, that employee can only reject claims or allow, settle, or compromise 

claims $50,000 or less.  The decision to allow, settle, or compromise claims over $50,000 

must go before the Commission for review and approval. 

California Government Code section 935.4 states: 

“A charter provision, or a local public entity by ordinance or resolution, may 

authorize an employee of the local public entity to perform those functions of 

the governing body of the public entity under this part that are prescribed by 

the local public entity, but only a charter provision may authorize that 

employee to allow, compromise, or settle a claim against the local public 

entity if the amount to be paid pursuant to the allowance, compromise or 

Page 11



 

 

settlement exceeds fifty thousand dollars ($50,000).  A Charter provision, 

ordinance, or resolution may provide that, upon the written order of that 

employee, the auditor or other fiscal officer of the local public entity shall 

cause a warrant to be issued upon the treasury of the local public entity in the 

amount for which a claim has been allowed, compromised, or settled.”  

On June 30, 2016, the Commission adopted a resolution which authorized the Executive 

Director to reject claims or allow, settle, or compromise claims up to and including 

$50,000.   

There have only been a handful of small claims filed against Alameda CTC and its 

predecessors over the years, and many of these claims were erroneously filed, and should 

have been filed with other agencies (such as Alameda County, AC Transit, and Caltrans). 

As staff moves forward with the implementation of Measure BB, Alameda CTC may 

experience an increase in claims against the agency as Alameda CTC puts more projects 

on the streets and highways of Alameda County and as Alameda CTC’s name is 

recognized as a funding agency on these projects.  Staff works directly with the agency’s 

insurance provider, the Special District Risk Management Authority (SDRMA), when claims 

are received so that responsibility may be determined promptly and they might be 

resolved expediently or referred to the appropriate agency.  This saves Alameda CTC 

money because when working with the SDRMA directly, much of the legal costs to 

address these claims are covered by insurance. 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact associated with the requested action. 

 

Page 12



 
 

Memorandum  6.4 

 

DATE: May 16, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Tess Lengyel, Deputy Executive Director of Planning and Policy 

Patricia Reavey, Deputy Executive Director of Finance  

and Administration 

SUBJECT: 2018 Alameda CTC Annual Report  

 

Recommendation 

This item is to inform the Commission that the 2018 Alameda CTC Annual Report has been 

prepared and completed for distribution. This item is for information only. 

Summary 

Alameda CTC prepares an annual report each year, as required in the Public Utilities Code 

section 180111, on progress made to achieve the objective of improving transportation in 

Alameda County. The 2018 Annual Report highlights key transportation programs and 

projects that Alameda CTC plans, funds, and delivers and includes financial information for 

FY2017-18. 

Many of these transportation investments are funded largely through local, voter-approved 

Measure B and Measure BB sales tax dollars and local, voter-approved Vehicle Registration 

Fee (VRF) funds. The annual report includes financial information related to Measure B and 

Measure BB revenues and expenditures for the year ended June 30, 2018, as well as 

information related to the VRF Program, including the total net VRF revenue from the start of 

the program, and revenues and expenditures through June 30, 2018. The final report can be 

found on Alameda CTC’s website: https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-

content/uploads/2019/04/2018_AlamedaCTC_Annual_Report.pdf.  

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact associated with the requested action. 

Attachment: 

A. 2018 Alameda CTC Annual Report 

Page 13

https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/2018_AlamedaCTC_Annual_Report.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/2018_AlamedaCTC_Annual_Report.pdf
https://www.alamedactc.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/04/2018_AlamedaCTC_Annual_Report.pdf


 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 14



 
 

 

 

Memorandum  6.5 

 

DATE: May 16, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Patricia Reavey, Deputy Executive Director of Finance and Admin. 

Lily Balinton, Director of Finance 

SUBJECT: Alameda CTC FY2019-20 Proposed Budget 

 

Recommendation  

It is recommended that the Commission approve the Alameda CTC Proposed Budget for 

FY2019-20. 

 

Summary  

The Alameda CTC FY2019-20 Proposed Consolidated Budget (Proposed Budget) 

demonstrates a sustainable, balanced budget utilizing projected revenues and fund 

balance to fund total expenditures.  A budget is considered sustainable when an agency is 

able to meet its expenditure requirements as they become due, and a budget is considered 

balanced when (1) total revenues equal total expenditures, (2) total revenues are greater 

than total expenditures, or (3) total revenues plus fund balance are greater than total 

expenditures.  The overall consolidated Alameda CTC budget fits into the second category, 

with total revenues exceeding expenditures; however the budget includes some funds that 

fit into each of the three categories.   For example, the Debt Service Fund fits into category 

one because revenues are projected to equal expenditures in this fund; and the Express 

Lanes Fund fits into category three because total revenues plus fund balance are being 

utilized to fund total expenditures due to the funding for the toll system upgrade project on 

the I-580 corridor.   

 

The Proposed Budget has been prepared based on the modified accrual basis of 

accounting, which is consistent with the basis of accounting utilized to prepare the agency’s 

audited financial statements.  It has been segregated by fund type and includes an 

adjustment column in order to eliminate interagency revenues and expenditures on a 

consolidated basis.  The fund types included are General Funds, Express Lanes Fund, Special 

Revenue Funds, Exchange Fund, Debt Service Fund, and Capital Projects Funds.   

 

Page 15



 

 

The Proposed Budget is summarized in Attachment A on page 11 of this staff report.  The 

FY2019-20 budget contains projected revenues totaling $392.0 million and anticipated 

expenditures of $360.0 million. Salaries and benefits expenditures are nominal as compared 

to total budgeted expenditures. These revenue and expenditure totals constitute a net 

increase in fund balance of $32.1 million and a projected consolidated ending fund balance 

of $387.4 million. 

 

Approval of the Proposed Capital Program budgets is requested for the amount found in the 

“Proposed FY2019-20 Capital Budget w/ Estimated Rollover” column on the attached FY2019-

20 Proposed Capital Programs Budget sheet.  This column includes both the additional 

capital budget amount requested for FY2019-20 as well as an estimated rollover balance 

from the adopted FY2018-19 budget.  The capital program amount carried forward to the 

Alameda CTC FY2019-20 Proposed Budget does not include the roll forward budget authority 

because the expenditure amount is still included in the approved budget for FY2018-19 and, 

therefore, is already netted out of the projected roll forward fund balance from the FY2018-

19 adopted budget.  During the mid-year budget update process, the roll forward fund 

balance will be updated to actual based on audited financial statements.  Consequently, 

the capital program budget amount on the consolidated budget spreadsheet for the mid-

year budget update will be for the full capital budget including both the actual roll forward 

balance from FY2018-19 and any additional requested capital budget for FY2019-20.  This 

methodology is necessary to ensure accurate and reliable fund balance information in the 

Alameda CTC budget. 

 

The Proposed Budget includes revenues and expenditures necessary to provide vital 

programs and planning projects for Alameda County and to deliver significant capital 

projects that expand access and improve mobility in Alameda County consistent with the 

Comprehensive Investment Plan (CIP).   

 

In January 2014, the Commission adopted a General Fund Balance Reserve Policy to 

conform to best practices in mitigating risk for the agency.  The policy was developed in 

accordance with best practice recommendations by the Government Finance Officers’ 

Association.  Alameda CTC has included the General Fund balance reserve amount in this 

budget, which is calculated based on 2 months’ worth of expenditures in the General Fund 

and 1 months’ worth of expenditures in all other funds and amounts to $33.1 million.  The 

Express Lanes Fund includes a maintenance reserve carried over from the prior year of $5.0 

million, and the operational risk reserve in this fund has decreased from prior year from $19.8 

million to $13.5 million to help fund the I-580 Toll System Upgrade project on the I-580 corridor.  

The goal for this reserve remains at $20.0 million, which was established in the I-580 Express 

Lane 20 Year Expenditure Plan approved by the Commission in April 2018.  This operational 

reserve was established in order to ensure financial stability for the agency, to address 

requirements established in agreements with the State of California, and to safeguard 

against other operational risks not covered by insurance.  The total amount of all reserves in 

the Proposed Budget is $51.6 million which is less than 10.0 percent of total expenditures 

including the roll forward capital budget.   

 

Background 

Page 16



 

 

Development of the Proposed Budget for FY2019-20 focused on the mission and core 

functions of Alameda CTC that will enable Alameda CTC to plan, fund and deliver 

transportation programs and projects that expand access and improve mobility in Alameda 

County.   

 

For the first time since the Commission approved an organizational structure with 37 full time 

equivalent (FTE) positions for the Alameda CTC in May 2016, the Proposed Budget includes all 

37 positions for the full fiscal year since it is anticipated that all positions will be filled by June. 

These 37 positions are expected to be filled within 32 job classifications, as approved by the 

Commission in December 2018.  Salaries and benefits in the Proposed Budget account for 

1.35 percent of budgeted expenditures including roll forward capital budget authority. The 

approved organizational structure was designed to prepare the agency to meet the initial 

challenges and expanded responsibilities of administering the 2014 Measure BB sales tax, 

implementing the CIP, and managing and maintaining the I-580 Express Lanes and the I-680 

Southbound Express Lane. 

The 2000 Measure B and 2014 Measure BB Salary and Benefits Limitation ratio and the 

Administrative Cost Limitation ratio were calculated based on the revenues and 

expenditures in the Proposed Budget and were found to be in compliance with requirements 

in the Transportation Expenditure Plans and the Public Utility Code.   

 

Fiscal Impact:  The fiscal impact of the FY2019-20 Proposed Consolidated Budget would be 

to provide resources of $392.0 million and authorize expenditures of $360.0 million, with an 

overall increase in fund balance of $32.1 million for a projected ending fund balance of 

$387.4 million. 

 

Attachments: 

A. Alameda CTC FY2019-20 Proposed Consolidated Budget 

B. Alameda CTC FY2019-20 Proposed Capital Programs Budget 

 

Page 17



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 18



Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Fiscal Year 2019-20 Proposed Consolidated Budget

General 
Funds

Express 
Lanes 
Fund

Special
Revenue 

Funds 
Exchange 

Fund
Debt Service

Fund

Capital 
Projects 
Funds

Inter-Agency 
Adjustments/
Eliminations Total 

Projected Beginning Fund Balance 67,295,054$        24,828,799$        98,853,202$        5,866,369$          9,290,141$          149,190,567$      -$  355,324,132$      

Revenues:
Sales Tax Revenues 13,600,000$        -$  200,013,596$      -$  -$  106,386,404$      -$  320,000,000$      
Investment Income 1,150,000            600,000 2,350,000            450,000 - 6,000,000 - 10,550,000 
Member Agency Fees 1,479,765            - - - - - - 1,479,765 
VRF Funds - - 12,000,000          - - - - 12,000,000 
TFCA Funds - - 1,980,600            - - 143,000 (143,000)             1,980,600 
Toll Revenues - 13,250,000 - - - - - 13,250,000 
Toll Violation and Penalty Revenue - 2,750,000 - - - - - 2,750,000 
Other Revenues - - 23,650 - 26,469,450 - (26,493,100) - 
Regional/State/Federal Grants 2,645,735            - 2,600,550 - - 17,252,345          - 22,498,629 
Local and Other Grants - 400,000 - 1,100,047 - 6,397,199 (366,995) 7,530,251 

Total Revenues 18,875,500          17,000,000          218,968,396        1,550,047            26,469,450          136,178,948        (27,003,095)        392,039,245        

Expenditures:
Administration

Salaries and Benefits 2,698,941            - - - - 23,309 - 2,722,250 
General Office Expenses 1,898,665            - 1,000 - - 26,135 (1,000) 1,924,800 
Travel Expense 64,600 - - - - 400 - 65,000
Debt Service - - - - 26,469,450          26,469,450          (26,469,450)        26,469,450 
Professional Services 3,491,465            - - - - 206,597 - 3,698,063 
Commission and Community Support 256,104 - 22,650 - - - (22,650) 256,104 
Contingency 198,000 - - - - 2,000 - 200,000 

Freeway Operations
Salaries and Benefits - 339,501 - - - - - 339,501 
Operating Expenditures - 6,000,000 - - - - - 6,000,000 
Special Project Expenditures - 425,000 - - - - - 425,000 

Planning - 
Salaries and Benefits 893,362 - - - - - - 893,362 
Transportation Planning 214,410 - - - - - - 214,410 
Congestion Management Program 200,000 - - - - - - 200,000 
Other Planning Projects - - - - - - - - 

Programs
Salaries and Benefits 183,254 - 1,598,540 55,266 - - (281,241)             1,555,818            
Programs Management and Support 350,000 - 2,040,268 - - - - 2,390,268            
Safe Routes to School Programs 49,652 - 2,926,313 - - - - 2,975,965            
VRF Programming - - 13,623,000 - - - - 13,623,000          
Measure B/BB Direct Local Distribution - - 165,350,706 - - - - 165,350,706        
Grant Awards - - 9,366,930            - - - - 9,366,930            
TFCA Programming - - 3,545,409            - - - - 3,545,409            
CMA TIP Programming - - - 1,044,781            - - - 1,044,781            

Capital Programs
Salaries and Benefits - 57,669 - - - 1,729,742            (217,123)             1,570,288            
Capital Project Expenditures - 16,492,337 10,250,000          - - 88,905,465          (509,995)             115,137,807        

Indirect Cost Recovery/Allocation
Indirect Cost Recovery from Capital, Spec Re (498,364)             - - - - - 498,364 - 

Total Expenditures 10,000,089          23,314,507          208,724,816        1,100,047            26,469,450          117,363,099        (27,003,095)        359,968,912        

Net Change in Fund Balance 8,875,411            (6,314,507)          10,243,580          450,000 - 18,815,849 - 32,070,333 

Projected Ending Fund Balance 76,170,465          18,514,291          109,096,782        6,316,369            9,290,141            168,006,416        - 387,394,465 

Freeway Maintenance Contributions - 5,000,000 - - - - - 5,000,000 
Fund Balance/Operational Reserves 33,081,008          13,514,291 - - - - - 46,595,299 

Projected Net Fund Balance 43,089,457$        -$  109,096,782$      6,316,369$          9,290,141$          168,006,416$      -$  335,799,165$      

6.5A

Page 19



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 20



Alameda CTC 
Fiscal Year 2019-20

Proposed Capital Programs Budget

(A) (B) (A) - (B) = (C) (D) (C) + (D) = (E)

Capital Programs

 Adopted 
FY 2018-19

Capital Budget 

 Estimated
FY 2018-19

Expenditures 

 Estimated
FY 2018-19
Rollover to
FY 2019-20 

 Proposed
FY 2019-20

Capital Budget
Request 

 Proposed 
FY 2019-20

Capital Budget
w/ Estimated 

Rollover 
Total 
Local

Total 
Regional

Total 
State

Total 
Federal

1986 Measure B Capital Program 4,535,026$   24,268$   4,510,758$   -$ 4,510,758$   4,510,758$   -$  -$  -$   
2000 Measure B Capital Program 108,341,348 50,794,904 57,546,444 24,385,840 81,932,284 81,932,284 - - - 
2014 Measure BB Capital Program 129,158,015 51,027,583 78,130,432 60,237,943 138,368,375 120,734,788 - 10,340,000 7,293,588 
2014 Measure BB SRF Discretionary Capital Program 25,604,000 6,700,000 18,904,000 10,250,000 29,154,000 29,154,000 - - - 
Non-Sales Tax Capital Program 15,798,716 10,456,324 5,342,392 6,011,425 11,353,816 6,862,539 2,788,156 1,703,120 - 
Express Lanes Capital Program - - - 16,492,337 16,492,337 16,492,337 - - - 

283,437,105$   119,003,079$   164,434,026$   117,377,545$   281,811,571$   259,686,705$   2,788,156$   12,043,120$   7,293,588$   

Funding

Printed 4/29/2019

6.5B

Page 21



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 22



 
 
 

Memorandum  6.6  

 

DATE: May 16, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Patricia Reavey, Deputy Executive Director of Finance  

and Administration 

Yoana Navarro, Accounting Manager 

SUBJECT: Alameda CTC FY2018-19 Third Quarter Consolidated  

Financial Report 

 

Recommendation  

It is recommended that the Commission approve the Alameda CTC FY2018-19 Third 

Quarter Consolidated Financial Report. 

Summary  

Alameda CTC’s expenditures through March 31, 2019 are within year-to-date budget 

authority per the currently adopted budget.  The agency remains in a strong financial 

position compared to budget through the third quarter of FY2018-19. 

The attached FY2018-19 Third Quarter Financial Report has been prepared on a 

consolidated basis and is compared to the currently adopted budget on a year-to-date 

basis.  This report provides a summary of FY2018-19 actual revenues and expenditures 

through March 31, 2019.  Variances from the year-to-date budget are demonstrated as a 

percentage of the budget used by line item as well as stating either a favorable or 

unfavorable variance in dollars.  Percentages over 100 percent indicate that actual 

revenue or expenditure items are more than 75 percent of the total annual budget 

through the third quarter of the fiscal year, and percentages under 100 percent indicate 

that actual revenue or expenditure items are less than 75 percent of the total annual 

budget through the third quarter of the fiscal year.  As of March 31, 2019, Alameda CTC 

activity for the fiscal year results in a net increase in fund balance in the amount of $61.9 

million mostly due to sales tax revenues received this fiscal year that have not yet been 

spent, primarily in the Measure BB Capital Projects and Special Revenue Funds.   

  

Page 23



Background 

The following are highlights of actual revenues and expenditures compared to budget as 

of March 31, 2019 by major category: 

Revenues 

Sales tax revenues are over budget by $28.2 million, or 12.4 percent, and investment 

income is over budget by $2.6 million or 43.9 percent as interest rates have been on the 

rise.  Toll and toll violation revenues are over budget by $0.7 million which will help to fund 

the targeted operational reserve goal established in the I-580 Express Lanes Expenditure 

Plan, and grant revenues are under budget by $10.5 million mostly related to timing on 

capital projects.  Grant revenues are recognized on a reimbursement basis  and, 

therefore, correlate directly with related expenditures, so capital and other project 

expenditures also are under budget.  

Salaries and Benefits 

Salaries and benefits are slightly under budget by $0.08 million, or 1.8 percent, as of  

March 31, 2019. 

Administration 

Costs for overall administration are over budget by $5.5 million, or 21.5 percent, mainly due to 

debt service costs which incurred 100 percent of the annual costs by March 31, 2019 and will 

not incur any additional costs in the fourth quarter of this fiscal year.  Debt service costs are 

required to be recorded when incurred per government accounting standards.  Actual 

expenditures in the debt service fund will equal 100% of the budget by the end of the  

fiscal year.  

Freeway Operations 

Freeway Operations expenditures are under budget by $6.1 million, or 63.2 percent, 

primarily related to a toll system upgrade special project accounted for in the budget 

which is not anticipated to begin until late in the fiscal year. 

Planning  

Planning expenditures are under budget by $0.6 million, or 35.4 percent, mostly related to 

delays in contracting and funding agreements which resulted in some work being 

delayed and invoices coming in later than anticipated. 

Programs 

Programs expenditures are under budget by $4.5 million, or 3.0 percent, largely due to the 

timing of invoices for discretionary programmatic grants.  Grant recipients generally 

submit invoices on a semi-annual basis, therefore, it is anticipated that expenditures will 

be closer to budget at the end of the fiscal year.  Expenditures for direct local 

distributions (DLD) have reduced the amount under budget significantly in the programs 

section because DLDs are over budget by $14.6 million due to sales tax revenues coming 

in higher than budgeted.  There is a budget adjustment for sales tax revenues for FY2018-

19 along with the corresponding DLD expenditures coming before you concurrently this 

month for approval to account for this variance. 

Page 24



Capital Projects 

Capital Projects expenditures are under budget by $150.7 million, or 73.0 percent.  This 

variance is due in part to a delay in billing for construction work completed earlier this 

fiscal year.  In addition, Alameda CTC utilizes a rolling capital budget system in which any 

unused approved budget from prior years is available to pay for costs in subsequent fiscal 

years. Additional budget authority is requested by project only as needed in accordance 

with the budget process. The year-to-date budget amount used for comparisons is a 

straight line amortization of the total approved project budget including unspent budget 

authority rolled over from the prior year. Expenditures planned through March 31, 2019 in 

the budget process generally will differ from the straight line budgeted amount used for 

the comparison.  However, presenting the information with this comparison helps financial 

report users, project managers, and the project control team review year-to-date 

expenditures to give them an idea of how the project is progressing as compared to the 

approved budget.  There are currently no real budget issues on capital projects. 

Limitations Calculations 

Staff has completed the limitation calculations required for both 2000 Measure B and 2014 

Measure BB related to salary and benefits and administration costs, and Alameda CTC is 

in compliance with all limitation requirements. 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact associated with the approval of this item. 

Attachment: 

A. Alameda CTC Consolidated Revenues/Expenditures as of March 31, 2019 

Page 25



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 26



YTD YTD

 Actuals  Budget 

REVENUES

 Sales Tax Revenue 256,184,582$   228,000,000$   112.36            28,184,582$   

 Investment Income 8,510,955 5,913,750 143.92            2,597,205 

 Member Agency Fees 1,077,499 1,077,499 100.00            - 

 VRF Funds 9,879,878 9,000,000 109.78            879,878 

 TFCA Revenues 1,608,321 1,568,465 102.54            39,856 

 Toll Revenues 9,943,517 9,750,000 101.98            193,517 

         Toll Violation/Penalty Revenues 2,108,848 1,575,000 133.90            533,848 

 Other Revenues 1,539 - - 1,539 

 Regional/State/Federal Grants 3,527,166 9,624,943 36.65 (6,097,777) 

 Local and Other Grants 7,988,228 12,383,957 64.50 (4,395,729) 

Total Revenues 300,830,533$   278,893,613$   21,936,920$   

EXPENDITURES

Administration

 Salaries and Benefits (1) 2,039,827 1,792,033 113.83            (247,794) 

 General Office Expenses 1,083,432 1,232,916 87.88 149,484 

 Travel Expense 23,773 48,225 49.30 24,452 

 Debt Service (2) 26,472,450 19,854,337 133.33            (6,618,113) 

 Professional Services 1,570,329 2,509,135 62.58 938,806 

 Commission and Community Support 123,509 189,563 65.15 66,054 

 Contingency - 150,000 - 150,000 

Subtotal 31,313,320 25,776,209 (5,537,111) 

Freeway Operations

 Salaries and Benefits (1) 232,295 287,674 80.75 55,379 

 Operating Expenditures 3,386,081 4,153,350 81.53 767,269 

 Special Project Expenditures (32,992) 5,287,500 (0.62) 5,320,492 

Subtotal 3,585,384 9,728,524 6,143,140 

Planning

 Salaries and Benefits (1) 498,928 593,963 84.00 95,035 

 Transportation Planning 561,403 947,302 59.26 385,899 

 Other Planning Projects - 99,596 - 99,596 

Subtotal 1,060,331 1,640,861 580,530 

Programs

 Salaries and Benefits (1) 1,089,849 1,121,656 97.16 31,807 

 Programs Management and Support 417,052 1,706,628 24.44 1,289,576 

 Safe Routes to School Program 870,513 1,801,313 48.33 930,800 

 VRF Programming 8,144,082 10,327,118 78.86 2,183,036 

 Measure B/BB Direct Local Distribution 132,365,436 117,812,377 112.35            (14,553,059) 

 Grant Awards 2,969,669 8,878,017 33.45 5,908,348 

 TFCA Programming 295,908 2,377,985 12.44 2,082,077 

 CMA TIP Programming 1,213,240 7,868,759 15.42 6,655,519 

Subtotal 147,365,749 151,893,853 4,528,104 

Capital Projects

 Salaries and Benefits (1) 760,320 910,075 83.54 149,755 

 Capital Project Expenditures 54,884,264 205,440,762 26.72 150,556,498 

Subtotal 55,644,584 206,350,837 150,706,253 

Total Expenditures 238,969,368$   395,390,284$   156,420,916$  

Net revenue over / (under) expenditures 61,861,165$  (116,496,671)$   

(1) Salaries and benefits are under budget by $84,182 or 1.8% as of March 31, 2019.

(2) Debt service cost are required to be recorded when incurred per government accounting standards and will equal budget by year end.

ALAMEDA COUNTY TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION 

Consolidated Revenues/Expenditures

March 31, 2019

Total Consolidated

 % Used 

 Favorable

(Unfavorable) 

Variance 

6.6A

Page 27



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 28



 
 

Memorandum  6.7 

DATE: May 16, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Patricia Reavey, Deputy Executive Director of Finance  

and Administration 

Lily Balinton, Director of Finance 

SUBJECT: Measure B and Measure BB Sales Tax Budget Update for FY2018-19 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Commission approve: 

 An increase to the Alameda CTC Measure B sales tax revenue budget for FY2018-19 

from the currently adopted amount of $152.0 million to $158.0 million for an increase of 

$6.0 million and an increase in the corresponding direct local distribution expenditures 

based on the formulas established in the 2000 transportation expenditure plan, and 

 An increase to the Alameda CTC Measure BB sales tax revenue budget for FY2018-19 

from the currently adopted amount of $152.0 million to $158.0 million for an increase of 

$6.0 million and an increase in the corresponding direct local distribution expenditures 

based on the formulas established in the 2014 transportation expenditure plan. 

Summary 

The proposed Measure B and Measure BB budget increases are 3.95 percent higher than the 

currently adopted budget.  Based on receipts to date, sales tax revenues are projected to 

out-perform the original projection in the budget by 4.71 percent.  Overall receipts in the 1st 

and 2nd quarters of the fiscal year were higher than budget by about 12.0 to 14.0 percent.  

However, since the California Department of Tax and Finance Administration (CDTFA) has 

taken over the administration of California sales tax funds, they have changed the 

methodology in which sales tax funds are distributed to recipients. The projected receipts 

received over the last couple of months are conservative estimates based on the new 

CDTFA calculation methodology.  This revised projection exceeds last fiscal year’s historical 

peak of actual collection levels of $154.5 million and $153.5 million for Measure B and 

Measure BB, respectively.  These revised sales tax projections will be included as a budget 

adjustment to the FY2018-19 budget, increasing projected revenues overall by $12.0 million 

and the corresponding direct local distribution budgeted expenditures based on the 

formulas established in the 2000 and 2014 transportation expenditure plans.   

Page 29



 

Background 

An adjustment to sales tax revenues in the budget is not always necessary once it has been 

established, however, when actual revenues are coming in higher than budget, it is 

imperative that we ensure that the Agency has adequate legal expenditure authority to 

allow for the transfer of all direct local distribution funds to the member agencies as sales tax 

revenues are collected.  For this reason, staff feels it is important for the Commission to adopt 

this sales tax revenues budget update for FY2018-19. 

Fiscal Impact:  The fiscal impact of approving the proposed FY2018-19 sales tax budget 

update would be to provide additional resources of $12.0 million and authorize the 

corresponding direct local distribution expenditures based on the formulas established in the 

2000 and 2014 transportation expenditure plans. 

Page 30



 
 

Memorandum  6.8 

 

DATE: May 16, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: 
Patricia Reavey, Deputy Executive Director of Finance/Administration 

Lily Balinton, Director of Finance 

SUBJECT: Alameda CTC FY2018-19 Third Quarter Investment Report 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Commission approve the Alameda CTC FY2018-19 Third Quarter 

Investment Report. 

Summary 

Alameda CTC’s investments for the third quarter were in compliance with the Agency’s 

investment policy with the exception of the duration target for the 2000 Measure B 

portfolio; the portfolio had a duration of 1.57 compared to its benchmark duration of 0.90 

which is slightly longer than 6 months as the policy allows.  As the new investment advisor 

works to phase in a more tailored investment strategy for the portfolio throughout 2019, 

the portfolio’s duration may continue to exhibit a variance from that of the established 

benchmark.  The Agency has sufficient cash flow to meet expenditure requirements over 

the next six months.  

 

At the beginning of this fiscal year, Alameda CTC hired Public Trust Advisors (PTA) as 

investment advisors for the Agency.  Staff has worked with PTA to develop a new 

investment strategy for the portfolio based on updated cash flow needs.  PTA is in the 

process of transitioning to this new investment strategy which is designed to improve the 

safety, liquidity, and yield of the investment portfolio by matching investments and 

maturities with the needs in the cash flows.  The new benchmarks have been established 

as a goal for the investment advisors to strive for and to align with the desired 

performance of the portfolios once the investment strategy is fully implemented. 

However, until the strategy is fully phased in, the benchmarks may not align well with the 

portfolio as it exists today.  However, based on timing of portfolio transactions and general 

downward trend in interest rates, the portfolios generated higher total returns than their 

benchmarks during the last quarter.   

 

The Consolidated Investment Report as of March 31, 2019 (Attachment A) provides 

balance and average return on investment information for all cash and investments held 

Page 31



by Alameda CTC at the end of the third quarter.  The report also shows balances as of 

June 30, 2018 for comparison purposes.  The Portfolio Review for Quarter Ending March 31, 

2019 (Attachment B), prepared by PTA, provides a review and outlook of market 

conditions and information regarding investment strategy, portfolio allocation, 

compliance, and returns by portfolio compared to the benchmarks.   

 

Background  

The following are key highlights of cash and investment information as of March 31, 2019: 

 As of March 31, 2019, total cash and investments held by Alameda CTC was $593.4 

million, an increase of $31.6 million or 5.6 percent over June 30, 2018 primarily due 

to the receipt of Measure BB sales tax revenues. 

 Quarter-end balances compared to prior year-end balances: 

 The 1986 Measure B investment balance increased by $1.5 million or 1.1 

percent due to investment earnings for the quarter. 

 The 2000 Measure B investment balance decreased $5.5 million or 3.2 

percent mainly due to the required principal and interest payment made on 

the outstanding bonds on March 1, 2019. 

 The 2014 Measure BB investment balance increased $22.4 million or 14.2 

percent due to the accumulation of sales tax revenues for funding the 

various projects and programs in the 2018 Comprehensive Investment Plan.  

Activity for the many contracts and agreements that were finalized late last 

fiscal year for construction and discretionary projects is ramping up, and 

while expenditures for the earlier phases of projects have been paid, the 

more significant expenditures for construction work are expected to be paid 

later in the fiscal year. 

 The Non-Sales Tax investment balance increased $13.2 million or 14.2 

percent as a result of grant reimbursement collections which outpaced 

expenditures as non-sales tax capital projects continue to wind down, in 

addition to the accumulation of toll revenues on the I-580 Express Lanes as 

the Agency accumulates funds for the operational risk reserve as defined in 

the I-580 Express Lanes 20-Year Expenditure Plan. 

Investment yields have increased at the end of the third quarter with the approximate 

average return on investments through March 31, 2019 at 1.98 percent compared to the 

prior year’s average return of 1.20 percent.  Return on investments for most funds were 

projected for the FY2018-19 budget year at approximately 1.75 percent. 

Fiscal Impact:  There is no fiscal impact associated with the requested action. 

Attachments: 

A. Consolidated Investment Report as of March 31, 2019 

B. Portfolio Review for Quarter Ending March 31, 2019 (provided by Public Trust Advisors) 

C. Holdings by Security Type as of March 31, 2019 

Page 32



Un-Audited
1986 Measure B Investment Balance Interest earned

Investment Balance Interest earned Approx. ROI  Budget Difference June 30, 2018 FY 2017-2018
 Bank Accounts 770,602$     971$     0.17% 983,237$     1,551 
State Treasurer Pool (LAIF) (1) 8,115,408 140,868 2.31% 7,982,873 123,176 
Investment Advisor (1) (2) 128,157,416 1,851,414 1.93% 126,556,768 1,504,594 

1986 Measure B Total 137,043,426$    1,993,253$     1.94% 1,500,000$     493,253$     135,522,878$    1,629,321$    
Approx. ROI 1.20%

$212,777,522 $12,425,608
Un-Audited

2000 Measure B Investment Balance Interest earned
Investment Balance Interest earned Approx. ROI  Budget Difference June 30, 2018 FY 2017-2018

 Bank Accounts 7,039,192$    18,590$    0.35% 5,894,103$    17,434$     
State Treasurer Pool (LAIF) (1) 20,645,972 337,658 2.18% 27,629,904 320,325 
Investment Advisor (1) (2) 138,548,966 1,965,442 1.89% 131,874,047 1,611,627 
 2014 Series A Bond Project Fund - - 0.00% - 8,825 
2014 Series A Bond Revenue Fund (1) 823 13 2.10% 810 4 
2014 Series A Bond Interest Fund (1) (2) 598,832 22,076 2.18% 1,712,542 21,223 
2014 Series A Bond Principal Fund (1) (2) 2,311,204 216,210 2.24% 7,507,309 129,605 
Project Deferred Revenue (1) (3) 745,639 13,510 2.42% 801,253 44,711 

2000 Measure B Total 169,890,628$    2,573,499$     2.02% 2,250,000$     323,499$     175,419,968$    2,153,754$    
Approx. ROI 1.23%

Un-Audited
2014 Measure BB Investment Balance Interest earned

Investment Balance Interest earned Approx. ROI  Budget Difference June 30, 2018 FY 2017-2018
 Bank Accounts 2,460,327$    17,953$    0.97% 1,441,895$    18,195$     
State Treasurer Pool (LAIF) (1) 59,091,383 832,781 1.88% 43,633,786 675,445 
Investment Advisor (1) (2) 112,244,549 1,640,179 1.95% 100,705,850 1,050,951 
Project Deferred Revenue (1) (3) 6,388,259 151,987 3.17% 12,000,000 56,343 

2014 Measure BB Total 180,184,518$    2,642,900$     1.96% 1,275,000$     1,367,900$    157,781,531$    1,800,934$    
Approx. ROI 1.14%

Un-Audited
Non-Sales Tax Investment Balance Interest earned

Investment Balance Interest earned Approx. ROI Budget Difference June 30, 2018 FY 2017-2018
 Bank Accounts 7,099,687$    19,827$    0.37% 5,423,196$    30,015$     
State Treasurer Pool (LAIF) (1) 31,638,916 523,973 2.21% 29,313,198 410,241 
 California Asset Management Program (CAMP) 58,037,994 923,000 2.12% 49,614,995 600,311 
Project Deferred Revenue (1) (4) 9,527,716 150,554 2.11% 8,756,339 112,205 

Non-Sales Tax Total 106,304,313$    1,617,354$     2.03% 888,750$    728,604$     93,107,728$    1,152,772$    
Approx. ROI 1.24%

Alameda CTC TOTAL 593,422,885$    8,827,006$     1.98% 5,913,750$     2,913,256$    561,832,105$    6,736,781$    

Notes: 
(1) All investments are marked to market on the financial statements at the end of the fiscal year per GASB 31 requirements.
(2) See attachments for detail of investment holdings managed by Investment Advisor.
(3) Project funds in deferred revenue are invested in LAIF with interest accruing back to the respective project.
(4) Project funds in deferred revenue are invested in LAIF with the majority of interest accruing back to the respective projects.

As of March 31, 2019

Interest Earned FY 2017-2018
As of March 31, 2019

Interest Earned FY 2017-2018
As of March 31, 2019

Interest Earned FY 2017-2018
As of March 31, 2019

Interest Earned FY 2017-2018

Alameda CTC
Consolidated Investment Report

As of March 31, 2019

6.8A

Page 33



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 34



Alameda County Transportation Commission 
Portfolio Review for the Quarter Ending March 31, 2019  

Fixed Income Market Review and Outlook 

The U.S. economy expanded downwardly at a 2.2% annualized rate in the fourth quarter of 2018 as final 

readings on consumer spending, government expenditures, and business fixed investment were less than 

previously estimated.  For the 2018 year, GDP expanded at a 2.9% pace, the strongest reading since 2015 

and well above the 2.2% increase in 2017.  Looking ahead, growth is expected to moderate in 2019 as the 

combination of  slowing global growth, higher  interest  rates,  fading  fiscal  stimulus, and ongoing  trade 

tensions with China weigh on domestic economic activity.   

The markets continue to keep a close eye on developments pertaining to trade negotiations and Brexit. 

President Trump recently addressed the public asserting his confidence that a trade deal with China will 

be finalized within the next four to six weeks. Meanwhile, the minute hand of Big Ben continues to count 

down on the U.K. as Parliament continues to fail in finding a path forward for Brexit, elevating the risk of 

a no‐deal exit and a general election. While the Eurozone economy has been slowing for several months 

now, recent retail sales figures still support solid fundamentals, suggesting a 2019 Eurozone recession is 

far from imminent.  

With respect to monetary policy, the Federal Open Market Committee  (FOMC) voted unanimously on 

March 20th to hold the target range of the federal funds rate steady at 2.25% to 2.5%. Chairman Powell 

reiterated January’s dovish language that the Fed will remain “patient” amid “global economic financial 

developments and muted inflation pressures”. Fed funds futures imply markets are priced for a bit more 

than one cut in 2019, however FOMC members are far from suggesting that a rate cut will be necessary 

by the close of this year.  

Treasury yields continue to grind lower as Fed officials reiterated their commitment to patience. Inversion 

of the yield curve may be the only recessionary signal of concern at present. March marked the first time 

since 2007 that yields on 10‐year Treasury notes fell below those of 3‐month T‐bills. Curve inversion would 

likely need to be sustained for some duration before the Fed shifts its stance on the current trajectory of 

monetary policy. 

Investment Strategy Update 

Alameda  CTC  is  working  with  Public  Trust  Advisors  (PTA)  to  develop  and  implement  a  long‐term 

investment strategy tailored to the specific cashflow and liquidity needs of the 1986 Measure B portfolio, 

the  2000 Measure  B  portfolio,  and  the  2014 Measure  BB  portfolio  (collectively,  the  Portfolio).    This 

approach separately considers each fund’s unique cashflow requirements and separates the portfolio into 

that portion requiring cashflow matching for anticipated capital projects and that portion that is available 

for longer term investment (core).  This customized approach is expected to improve the safety, liquidity, 

and yield of the Portfolio due to the improved asset‐liability matching and longer maturity profile.  Based 

upon  a  review of  current portfolio holdings  and  the  trades  that would be  required  to  rebalance  the 

Portfolios to their customized  long‐term strategy,  it has been determined to be  in Alameda CTC’s best 

6.8B

Page 35



 

interest  to  phase  in  the  implementation  of  the  long‐term  investment  strategies  over  the  course  of 

calendar year 2019 rather than immediately.    

Portfolio Allocation 

Provided below is a summary of the Alameda CTC consolidated portfolio as of the quarter ending March 

31, 2019.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Compliance with Investment Policy Statement 

As of the quarter ending March 31, 2019, the Alameda CTC portfolios were in compliance with the 

adopted investment policy statement with the exception of duration constraints for the 2000 Measure B 

portfolio.  With a duration of 1.57, the portfolio is more than 6 months longer than its benchmark 

duration of 0.90.  As the long‐term investment strategy is being phased in, this portfolio’s duration will 

continue to exhibit variance from that of its existing, shorter‐term benchmark.  

Budget Impact 

The portfolios’ performance is reported on a total return basis. This method includes the coupon interest, 

amortization of discounts and premiums, capital gains and losses and price changes (i.e., unrealized gains 

and  losses) but does not  include  the deduction of management  fees.   Portfolio performance  for  the 

quarter ending March 31, 2019  is summarized  in  the table below.   Given  the decision to phase  in the 

implementation of  the  longer‐term  strategy over  the  course of  calendar  year 2019,  the  reporting of 

benchmark performance and yield to maturity on the non‐bond funds will not align well with the portfolio 

as it exists today.  During this transition period, Portfolio performance will exhibit greater variances from 

the benchmarks, depending upon market conditions, until such time as the investment strategy is fully 

implemented. However, the benchmark established to compare performance will align better with the 

target investment strategy when it is fully implemented and will provide more appropriate and meaningful 

performance comparisons at that time.  With that said, due to the timing of portfolio transactions and the 

general downward trend in interest rates over the quarter, the Portfolios generated higher total returns 

than their benchmarks.   

 

Money Market Fund:  0.17% 
U.S. Treasury Notes/Bonds:  53.14% 
U.S. Treasury Bills:  0.27% 
U.S. Agency Bonds:  27.09% 
U.S. Agency Discount Notes:  3.32% 
U.S. Corporate Bonds:  13.61% 
Commercial Paper:  2.40% 
   

Page 36



 

Portfolio & Benchmark Total Return 1 

1986 Measure B Portfolio  2000 Measure B Portfolio  2014 Measure BB Portfolio 

Portfolio Return:  1.02%  Portfolio Return: 0.94%  Portfolio Return:  0.71% 

Benchmark Return:  0.89%  Benchmark Return:  0.82%  Benchmark Return: 0.65% 

1 Note: Past performance is not an indication of future results. Performance is presented prior to the deduction of investment 

management fees. 
 1986 Measure B benchmark is the BofAML 0‐3 Year US Treasury Index.  

2000 Measure B benchmark is the BofAML 1 Year US Treasury Index.  

2014 Measure BB benchmark is the ML 6mo. Treasury Index. 

Over the quarter, durations  in the 1986 Measure B, 2000 Measure B, and 2014 Measure BB portfolios 

averaged 1.29, 1.04, and 0.62 respectively, compared to average benchmark durations of 1.40, 0.94, and 

0.45 respectively.    

The portfolio’s yield to maturity, representing the return the portfolio will earn in the future if all securities 

are held to maturity, is also reported. This calculation is based on the current market value of the portfolio 

including unrealized gains and losses. Portfolio yield to maturity for the quarter ending March 31, 2019 is 

summarized below: 

Portfolio & Benchmark Yield to Maturity 

1986 Measure B Portfolio  2000 Measure B Portfolio  2014 Measure BB Portfolio 

Portfolio YTM:  2.38%  Portfolio YTM: 2.37%  Portfolio YTM:  2.47% 

Benchmark YTM:  2.32%  Benchmark YTM:  2.41%  Benchmark YTM: 2.43% 
 

Bond Portfolios 

The Bond portfolios, including the Interest and Principal Funds, remain invested in permitted high grade 

fixed income securities with maturity dates matched to appropriate debt service payment dates.  As of 

March 31, 2019, the weighted average maturity for the Interest Fund and Principal Fund were 0.39 and 

0.89 years, respectively.   

One way to measure the anticipated return of the Bond portfolios  is their yield to maturity. This  is the 

return the portfolio will earn in the future if all securities are held to maturity. This calculation is based on 

the current market value of the portfolio. The yield to maturity for the Bond Portfolios and comparable 

maturity U.S. Treasury securities as of the quarter ending March 31, 2019 are summarized below: 

   

Page 37



 

Portfolio & Comparable Maturity U.S. Treasury Security Yield to Maturity 

Interest Fund Portfolio  Principal Fund Portfolio 

Portfolio YTM:  2.38%  Portfolio YTM:  2.40% 

Comparable TSY YTM:  2.44%  Comparable TSY YTM:  2.41% 

 

For the quarter ending March 31, 2019, the Alameda CTC Series 2014 Bonds Interest Fund and Principal 

Fund portfolios were invested in compliance with Section 5.11 of the Bond Indenture dated February 1, 

2014. 

Page 38



Agency

Corporate

MM Fund

US Gov

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 3137EADZ9 04/15/2019 4,000,000.00 99.9481 3,997,924.00 3,957,480.00 3,998,279.54 2.265 3.238% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 3130ABF92 05/28/2019 4,000,000.00 99.8315 3,993,260.00 3,998,360.00 3,999,873.85 1.395 3.234% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 313384HL6 06/28/2019 1,000,000.00 99.4084 994,084.00 993,828.33 994,096.66 2.437 0.805% A-1+ P-1

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 3137EAEB1 07/19/2019 2,000,000.00 99.5234 1,990,468.00 1,978,200.00 1,996,861.03 1.410 1.612% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 3130A9EP2 09/26/2019 4,000,000.00 99.3050 3,972,200.00 3,965,240.00 3,991,964.57 1.420 3.217% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 3130AE6V7 05/07/2020 5,200,000.00 100.0878 5,204,565.60 5,196,152.00 5,197,725.15 2.570 4.216% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 3130AECJ7 05/28/2020 5,000,000.00 100.2155 5,010,775.00 5,005,300.00 5,003,075.31 2.570 4.059% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 3130ACE26 09/28/2020 1,400,000.00 98.5048 1,379,067.20 1,364,860.00 1,379,076.95 2.413 1.117% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 3137EAEJ4 09/29/2020 2,000,000.00 98.9283 1,978,566.00 1,993,156.00 1,996,523.99 1.745 1.603% AA+ Aaa

Federal National Mortgage Association Fannie Mae 3135G0H55 12/28/2020 1,000,000.00 99.2665 992,665.00 995,700.00 997,516.68 2.022 0.804% AA+ Aaa

Council of Federal Home Loan Banks 3130AFFN2 12/10/2021 3,300,000.00 101.7585 3,358,030.50 3,335,475.00 3,332,993.76 2.611 2.720% AA+ Aaa

Federal National Mortgage Association Fannie Mae 3135G0S38 01/05/2022 5,800,000.00 99.2243 5,755,009.40 5,705,283.80 5,711,749.67 2.575 4.661% AA+ Aaa

Council of Federal Home Loan Banks 3130AFE78 12/09/2022 5,300,000.00 102.5502 5,435,160.60 5,367,787.00 5,364,259.41 2.651 4.402% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 3130ADRG9 03/10/2023 4,600,000.00 101.7632 4,681,107.20 4,613,018.00 4,612,381.30 2.677 3.792% AA+ Aaa

--- --- 12/31/2020 48,600,000.00 100.3106 48,742,882.50 48,469,840.13 48,576,377.86 2.277 39.480% AA+ Aaa

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

International Business Machines Corporation 459200JE2 05/17/2019 2,000,000.00 99.8961 1,997,922.00 2,009,800.00 2,000,705.48 1.515 1.618% A A1

The Coca-Cola Company 191216BV1 05/30/2019 2,000,000.00 99.7485 1,994,970.00 1,997,040.00 1,999,771.41 1.447 1.616% A+ A1

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation 06406HCW7 09/11/2019 1,000,000.00 99.8502 998,502.00 1,012,340.00 1,002,246.73 1.666 0.809% A A1

Cisco Systems, Inc. 17275RBG6 09/20/2019 1,000,000.00 99.4479 994,479.00 995,950.00 999,089.41 1.597 0.806% AA- A1

U.S. Bank National Association 90331HML4 10/28/2019 2,000,000.00 99.7624 1,995,248.00 2,016,400.00 2,003,843.75 1.726 1.616% AA- A1

Apple Inc. 037833CK4 02/07/2020 2,000,000.00 99.5327 1,990,654.00 1,993,200.00 1,997,269.50 2.064 1.612% AA+ Aa1

State Street Corporation 857477AS2 08/18/2020 1,000,000.00 99.9437 999,437.00 1,008,800.00 1,004,581.44 2.206 0.810% A A1

State Street Corporation 857477AS2 08/18/2020 1,000,000.00 99.9437 999,437.00 994,500.00 996,927.54 2.781 0.810% A A1

The Home Depot, Inc. 437076AT9 09/15/2020 2,000,000.00 101.8481 2,036,962.00 2,056,240.00 2,030,544.14 2.638 1.650% A A2

American Honda Finance Corporation 02665WAZ4 09/24/2020 1,500,000.00 99.6330 1,494,495.00 1,490,505.00 1,491,262.67 2.853 1.211% A A2

PepsiCo, Inc. 713448DC9 10/14/2020 2,000,000.00 99.6284 1,992,568.00 1,997,540.00 1,998,653.83 2.195 1.614% A+ A1

Berkshire Hathaway Finance Corporation 084664BZ3 10/15/2020 1,000,000.00 100.6495 1,006,495.00 1,006,310.00 1,003,692.86 2.650 0.815% AA Aa2

Microsoft Corporation 594918BG8 11/03/2020 1,000,000.00 99.3348 993,348.00 996,730.00 998,182.29 2.118 0.805% AAA Aaa

Oracle Corporation 68389XBA2 07/08/2021 1,300,000.00 100.4105 1,305,336.50 1,300,949.00 1,300,912.67 2.767 1.057% AA- A1

Toyota Motor Credit Corporation 89233P5T9 01/12/2022 1,300,000.00 101.7875 1,323,237.50 1,316,588.00 1,316,066.66 2.834 1.072% AA- Aa3

--- --- 05/20/2020 22,100,000.00 100.1104 22,123,091.00 22,192,892.00 22,143,750.38 2.161 17.919% A+ A1

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Funds 61747C707 03/31/2019 462,308.72 1.0000 462,308.72 462,308.72 462,308.72 2.340 0.374% AAAm Aaa

Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Funds 61747C707 03/31/2019 462,308.72 1.0000 462,308.72 462,308.72 462,308.72 2.340 0.374% AAAm Aaa

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Treasury, United States Department of 912828D23 04/30/2019 4,000,000.00 99.9335 3,997,340.00 3,974,843.76 3,997,979.14 2.271 3.238% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828ST8 04/30/2019 3,500,000.00 99.8950 3,496,325.00 3,496,308.58 3,499,849.86 1.305 2.832% AA+ Aaa

Holdings by Security Type ACTC 1986 Measure B (159781)
Base Currency: USD As of 03/31/2019 Dated: 04/09/2019

1

6.8C

Page 39



Summary

 

* Grouped by: Security Type Category.     * Groups Sorted by: Security Type Category.     * Filtered By: Description ≠ "Receivable" and Description ≠ "Payable".     * Weighted by: Market Value + Accrued, except Book Yield by Base Book Value + Accrued.     * Holdings Displayed by:

Lot.

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Treasury, United States Department of 912828XV7 06/30/2019 4,000,000.00 99.6875 3,987,500.00 3,992,656.24 3,999,030.88 1.350 3.230% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828LJ7 08/15/2019 3,000,000.00 100.4102 3,012,306.00 3,138,398.43 3,025,748.55 1.284 2.440% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912796SK6 09/26/2019 1,000,000.00 98.8282 988,282.00 987,934.92 988,200.09 2.456 0.800% A-1+ P-1

Treasury, United States Department of 912828ND8 05/15/2020 5,000,000.00 101.1992 5,059,960.00 5,089,257.80 5,053,191.42 2.522 4.098% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828NT3 08/15/2020 1,500,000.00 100.3320 1,504,980.00 1,539,667.97 1,519,295.85 1.663 1.219% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828VZ0 09/30/2020 1,000,000.00 99.4727 994,727.00 990,820.31 994,704.77 2.366 0.806% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828A42 11/30/2020 5,000,000.00 99.4414 4,972,070.00 4,926,757.80 4,951,516.85 2.605 4.027% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 9128284P2 05/15/2021 4,000,000.00 100.6992 4,027,968.00 3,997,031.24 3,997,871.61 2.651 3.263% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 9128285A4 09/15/2021 3,900,000.00 101.1719 3,945,704.10 3,923,765.63 3,921,956.31 2.511 3.196% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 9128285R7 12/15/2021 2,650,000.00 101.0000 2,676,500.00 2,665,320.31 2,665,136.65 2.405 2.168% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828G87 12/31/2021 2,650,000.00 99.6719 2,641,305.35 2,629,814.45 2,630,052.63 2.409 2.139% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828XW5 06/30/2022 5,700,000.00 98.4922 5,614,055.40 5,557,500.00 5,565,869.05 2.510 4.547% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828L57 09/30/2022 5,300,000.00 98.3672 5,213,461.60 5,156,734.38 5,164,575.84 2.519 4.223% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of --- 12/21/2020 52,200,000.00 99.8819 52,132,484.45 52,066,811.82 51,974,979.49 2.233 42.226% AA+ Aaa

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

--- --- 11/14/2020 123,362,308.72 99.7239 123,460,766.67 123,191,852.67 123,157,416.45 2.238 100.000% AA Aa1

Holdings by Security Type ACTC 1986 Measure B (159781)
Base Currency: USD As of 03/31/2019 Dated: 04/09/2019

2Page 40



Agency

Corporate

MM Fund

US Gov

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 313384HL6 06/28/2019 3,000,000.00 99.4084 2,982,252.00 2,981,484.99 2,982,289.99 2.437 2.180% A-1+ P-1

Federal National Mortgage Association Fannie Mae 3135G0ZG1 09/12/2019 3,000,000.00 99.6790 2,990,370.00 3,009,648.00 3,002,279.93 1.577 2.186% AA+ Aaa

Federal Farm Credit Banks Funding Corporation 3133EH2S1 12/12/2019 3,500,000.00 99.6604 3,488,114.00 3,498,950.00 3,499,635.22 1.890 2.550% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 3130A0JR2 12/13/2019 3,500,000.00 99.9732 3,499,062.00 3,533,005.00 3,511,495.62 1.895 2.558% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 3137EAEE5 01/17/2020 3,000,000.00 99.2487 2,977,461.00 2,958,420.00 2,982,540.00 2.249 2.176% AA+ Aaa

Federal National Mortgage Association Fannie Mae 3135G0T29 02/28/2020 3,000,000.00 99.1689 2,975,067.00 2,953,842.00 2,979,087.60 2.286 2.175% AA+ Aaa

Farm Credit Banks Consolidated Systemwide
Bonds and Discount Notes

3133EJHL6 03/27/2020 4,000,000.00 100.2069 4,008,276.00 3,999,920.00 3,999,960.49 2.376 2.930% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 3130AECJ7 05/28/2020 4,000,000.00 100.2155 4,008,620.00 4,004,240.00 4,002,443.49 2.570 2.930% AA+ Aaa

Council of Federal Home Loan Banks 3130AFFN2 12/10/2021 6,500,000.00 101.7585 6,614,302.50 6,569,875.00 6,564,987.71 2.611 4.834% AA+ Aaa

Council of Federal Home Loan Banks 3130AFE78 12/09/2022 3,500,000.00 102.5502 3,589,257.00 3,544,765.00 3,542,435.45 2.651 2.623% AA+ Aaa

--- --- 08/23/2020 37,000,000.00 100.3747 37,132,781.50 37,054,149.99 37,067,155.50 2.297 27.141% AA+ Aaa

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Cisco Systems, Inc. 17275RBG6 09/20/2019 2,000,000.00 99.4479 1,988,958.00 1,980,500.00 1,994,816.07 1.962 1.454% AA- A1

Oracle Corporation 68389XAX3 10/08/2019 2,000,000.00 99.7867 1,995,734.00 2,010,320.00 2,002,993.59 1.955 1.459% AA- A1

Branch Banking and Trust Company 07330NAN5 01/15/2020 2,500,000.00 99.5443 2,488,607.50 2,494,450.00 2,497,872.75 2.210 1.819% A A1

PepsiCo, Inc. 713448BN7 01/15/2020 2,000,000.00 101.4422 2,028,844.00 2,103,180.00 2,039,030.13 1.969 1.483% A+ A1

American Honda Finance Corporation 02665WAZ4 09/24/2020 1,350,000.00 99.6330 1,345,045.50 1,341,454.50 1,342,136.40 2.853 0.983% A A2

Oracle Corporation 68389XBA2 07/08/2021 1,350,000.00 100.4105 1,355,541.75 1,350,985.50 1,350,947.77 2.767 0.991% AA- A1

Toyota Motor Credit Corporation 89233P5T9 01/12/2022 1,350,000.00 101.7875 1,374,131.25 1,367,226.00 1,366,684.61 2.834 1.004% AA- Aa3

Apple Inc. 037833CM0 02/09/2022 1,350,000.00 99.8777 1,348,348.95 1,341,454.50 1,341,661.95 2.726 0.986% AA+ Aa1

--- --- 07/24/2020 13,900,000.00 100.1900 13,925,210.95 13,989,570.50 13,936,143.27 2.329 10.178% A+ A1

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Funds 61747C707 03/31/2019 140,642.32 1.0000 140,642.32 140,642.32 140,642.32 2.340 0.103% AAAm Aaa

Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Funds 61747C707 03/31/2019 140,642.32 1.0000 140,642.32 140,642.32 140,642.32 2.340 0.103% AAAm Aaa

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Treasury, United States Department of 912828KQ2 05/15/2019 1,000,000.00 100.0783 1,000,783.00 1,027,734.38 1,002,057.86 1.395 0.731% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828WS5 06/30/2019 3,000,000.00 99.7773 2,993,319.00 2,983,007.82 2,997,036.25 2.032 2.188% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828LJ7 08/15/2019 2,000,000.00 100.4102 2,008,204.00 2,075,546.88 2,015,426.99 1.519 1.468% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828U73 12/15/2019 3,500,000.00 99.2578 3,474,023.00 3,469,511.71 3,489,327.03 1.816 2.539% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828G95 12/31/2019 3,500,000.00 99.3828 3,478,398.00 3,485,781.25 3,494,826.11 1.826 2.542% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828G95 12/31/2019 500,000.00 99.3828 496,914.00 495,546.88 496,493.81 2.577 0.363% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 9128283S7 01/31/2020 3,500,000.00 99.6680 3,488,380.00 3,490,566.42 3,496,058.57 2.138 2.550% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828UV0 03/31/2020 2,000,000.00 98.7617 1,975,234.00 1,952,343.76 1,977,321.35 2.294 1.444% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828ND8 05/15/2020 2,288,000.00 101.1992 2,315,437.70 2,328,844.37 2,312,340.39 2.522 1.692% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 9128284Q0 05/31/2020 3,500,000.00 100.1250 3,504,375.00 3,499,316.42 3,499,601.63 2.510 2.561% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828L65 09/30/2020 6,500,000.00 98.5469 6,405,548.50 6,372,031.25 6,387,255.83 2.565 4.682% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828A83 12/31/2020 7,500,000.00 100.0820 7,506,150.00 7,477,441.43 7,479,779.44 2.533 5.486% AA+ Aaa

Holdings by Security Type ACTC 2000 Measure B (159783)
Base Currency: USD As of 03/31/2019 Dated: 04/09/2019

1Page 41



Summary

 

* Grouped by: Security Type Category.     * Groups Sorted by: Security Type Category.     * Filtered By: Description ≠ "Receivable" and Description ≠ "Payable".     * Weighted by: Market Value + Accrued, except Book Yield by Base Book Value + Accrued.     * Holdings Displayed by:

Lot.

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Treasury, United States Department of 912828A83 12/31/2020 2,200,000.00 100.0820 2,201,804.00 2,196,046.89 2,196,119.65 2.478 1.609% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 9128283X6 02/15/2021 2,200,000.00 99.8906 2,197,593.20 2,191,062.50 2,191,216.15 2.469 1.606% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 9128284B3 03/15/2021 2,200,000.00 100.1680 2,203,696.00 2,196,906.25 2,196,957.39 2.448 1.611% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828C57 03/31/2021 7,500,000.00 99.9531 7,496,482.50 7,455,175.73 7,459,301.35 2.530 5.479% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828WG1 04/30/2021 2,300,000.00 99.9297 2,298,383.10 2,290,656.25 2,290,801.49 2.448 1.680% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828WN6 05/31/2021 2,300,000.00 99.4102 2,286,434.60 2,278,527.34 2,278,848.23 2.438 1.671% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828WR7 06/30/2021 7,500,000.00 99.6719 7,475,392.50 7,430,566.43 7,436,307.30 2.516 5.464% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828WR7 06/30/2021 2,300,000.00 99.6719 2,292,453.70 2,284,457.04 2,284,680.95 2.431 1.676% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828Y20 07/15/2021 2,300,000.00 100.7852 2,318,059.60 2,310,062.50 2,309,920.11 2.429 1.694% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828RC6 08/15/2021 2,300,000.00 99.6641 2,292,274.30 2,283,828.13 2,284,048.91 2.427 1.675% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828F21 09/30/2021 2,300,000.00 99.6719 2,292,453.70 2,283,378.91 2,283,594.54 2.421 1.676% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828G53 11/30/2021 2,400,000.00 99.0195 2,376,468.00 2,366,718.74 2,367,123.79 2.408 1.737% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 9128285R7 12/15/2021 2,400,000.00 101.0000 2,424,000.00 2,413,875.00 2,413,708.67 2.405 1.772% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828G87 12/31/2021 2,400,000.00 99.6719 2,392,125.60 2,381,718.74 2,381,934.45 2.409 1.748% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828XW5 06/30/2022 4,000,000.00 98.4922 3,939,688.00 3,900,000.00 3,905,873.01 2.510 2.880% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828S35 06/30/2023 500,000.00 96.5039 482,519.50 476,250.00 477,063.36 2.522 0.353% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of --- 01/05/2021 85,888,000.00 99.6897 85,616,594.50 85,396,903.01 85,405,024.57 2.365 62.578% AA+ Aaa

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

--- --- 11/12/2020 136,928,642.32 99.8257 136,815,229.27 136,581,265.81 136,548,965.67 2.343 100.000% AA Aa1

Holdings by Security Type ACTC 2000 Measure B (159783)
Base Currency: USD As of 03/31/2019 Dated: 04/09/2019

2Page 42



Agency

CP

Corporate

MM Fund

US Gov

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Federal National Mortgage Association Fannie Mae 3135G0ZE6 06/20/2019 2,000,000.00 99.8404 1,996,808.00 1,998,900.00 1,999,842.58 1.786 1.813% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 313384HL6 06/28/2019 8,370,000.00 99.4084 8,320,483.08 8,318,343.12 8,320,589.07 2.437 7.553% A-1+ P-1

Federal Farm Credit Banks Funding Corporation 3133EH2S1 12/12/2019 2,000,000.00 99.6604 1,993,208.00 1,999,400.00 1,999,790.41 1.890 1.809% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 3130A0JR2 12/13/2019 2,000,000.00 99.9732 1,999,464.00 2,018,860.00 2,006,568.93 1.895 1.815% AA+ Aaa

Federal National Mortgage Association Fannie Mae 3135G0A78 01/21/2020 2,523,000.00 99.3552 2,506,731.70 2,499,258.57 2,513,286.10 2.114 2.275% AA+ Aaa

Federal National Mortgage Association Fannie Mae 3135G0T29 02/28/2020 2,000,000.00 99.1689 1,983,378.00 1,969,074.00 1,985,988.63 2.290 1.800% AA+ Aaa

Farm Credit Banks Consolidated Systemwide
Bonds and Discount Notes

3133EJHL6 03/27/2020 2,000,000.00 100.2069 2,004,138.00 1,999,960.00 1,999,980.25 2.376 1.819% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 3130ADUJ9 03/30/2020 3,000,000.00 99.9390 2,998,170.00 3,001,359.00 3,000,686.10 2.351 2.722% AA+ Aaa

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation 3137EAEF2 04/20/2020 3,000,000.00 98.9135 2,967,405.00 2,944,563.00 2,971,235.52 2.312 2.694% AA+ Aaa

--- --- 11/21/2019 26,893,000.00 99.5431 26,769,785.78 26,749,717.69 26,797,967.57 2.237 24.300% AA+ Aaa

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Toyota Motor Credit Corporation 89233HW59 09/05/2019 2,275,000.00 98.8790 2,249,497.25 2,241,320.51 2,249,700.10 2.586 2.042% A-1+ P-1

Toyota Motor Credit Corporation 89233HY40 11/04/2019 2,250,000.00 98.4390 2,214,877.50 2,206,791.88 2,215,144.38 2.612 2.010% A-1+ P-1

J.P. Morgan Securities LLC 46640QY54 11/05/2019 4,500,000.00 98.4320 4,429,440.00 4,411,556.24 4,427,787.49 2.694 4.021% A-1 P-1

--- --- 10/20/2019 9,025,000.00 98.5468 8,893,814.75 8,859,668.63 8,892,631.97 2.646 8.073% AA- P-1

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Caterpillar Financial Services Corporation 14912L6R7 05/18/2019 889,000.00 99.8269 887,461.14 886,493.02 887,407.73 2.737 0.806% A A3

Pfizer Inc. 717081DU4 06/03/2019 2,000,000.00 99.8089 1,996,178.00 1,988,360.00 1,998,636.95 1.852 1.812% AA A1

Target Corporation 87612EBB1 06/26/2019 2,000,000.00 99.8920 1,997,840.00 2,013,820.00 2,002,118.57 1.842 1.813% A A2

Microsoft Corporation 594918BN3 08/08/2019 1,000,000.00 99.4844 994,844.00 984,390.00 995,848.06 2.300 0.903% AAA Aaa

The Bank of New York Mellon Corporation 06406HCW7 09/11/2019 1,500,000.00 99.8502 1,497,753.00 1,491,165.00 1,497,303.17 2.714 1.360% A A1

The Procter & Gamble Company 742718EG0 11/01/2019 1,000,000.00 99.5847 995,847.00 992,800.00 997,296.84 2.373 0.904% AA- Aa3

PepsiCo, Inc. 713448BN7 01/15/2020 2,000,000.00 101.4422 2,028,844.00 2,103,180.00 2,039,030.13 1.969 1.842% A+ A1

Apple Inc. 037833CK4 02/07/2020 3,000,000.00 99.5327 2,985,981.00 2,989,800.00 2,995,904.25 2.064 2.710% AA+ Aa1

Intel Corporation 458140AZ3 05/11/2020 1,000,000.00 99.2215 992,215.00 985,900.00 992,487.40 2.548 0.901% A+ A1

--- --- 10/16/2019 14,389,000.00 99.9215 14,376,963.14 14,435,908.02 14,406,033.11 2.170 13.050% A+ A1

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Funds 61747C707 03/31/2019 33,504.78 1.0000 33,504.78 33,504.78 33,504.78 2.340 0.030% AAAm Aaa

Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Funds 61747C707 03/31/2019 33,504.78 1.0000 33,504.78 33,504.78 33,504.78 2.340 0.030% AAAm Aaa

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Treasury, United States Department of 912828WS5 06/30/2019 2,000,000.00 99.7773 1,995,546.00 1,995,312.50 1,999,258.57 1.778 1.811% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828XV7 06/30/2019 2,000,000.00 99.6875 1,993,750.00 1,983,984.38 1,997,466.77 1.772 1.810% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828XV7 06/30/2019 12,000,000.00 99.6875 11,962,500.00 11,932,968.72 11,963,214.54 2.495 10.859% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828F39 09/30/2019 23,225,000.00 99.6367 23,140,623.57 23,094,359.38 23,132,122.68 2.563 21.005% AA+ Aaa

Holdings by Security Type ACTC 2014 Measure BB (159782)
Base Currency: USD As of 03/31/2019 Dated: 04/09/2019

1Page 43



Summary

 

* Grouped by: Security Type Category.     * Groups Sorted by: Security Type Category.     * Filtered By: Description ≠ "Receivable" and Description ≠ "Payable".     * Weighted by: Market Value + Accrued, except Book Yield by Base Book Value + Accrued.     * Holdings Displayed by:

Lot.

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Treasury, United States Department of 9128283H1 11/30/2019 2,650,000.00 99.5469 2,637,992.85 2,622,982.43 2,638,063.15 2.444 2.395% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828G95 12/31/2019 2,000,000.00 99.3828 1,987,656.00 1,991,875.00 1,997,043.49 1.826 1.804% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828G95 12/31/2019 1,375,000.00 99.3828 1,366,513.50 1,364,150.40 1,365,738.97 2.538 1.240% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828MP2 02/15/2020 2,102,000.00 101.0000 2,123,020.00 2,164,485.23 2,128,803.32 2.130 1.927% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 9128283Y4 02/29/2020 3,000,000.00 99.8594 2,995,782.00 2,998,710.93 2,999,376.92 2.273 2.719% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 9128284C1 03/31/2020 4,000,000.00 99.8320 3,993,280.00 3,998,281.24 3,999,131.10 2.272 3.625% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828X21 04/15/2020 3,000,000.00 99.0781 2,972,343.00 2,952,421.89 2,975,468.55 2.309 2.698% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of 912828ND8 05/15/2020 2,888,000.00 101.1992 2,922,632.90 2,939,555.31 2,918,723.37 2.522 2.653% AA+ Aaa

Treasury, United States Department of --- 10/29/2019 60,240,000.00 99.7564 60,091,639.82 60,039,087.40 60,114,411.42 2.403 54.547% AA+ Aaa

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

--- --- 11/01/2019 110,580,504.78 99.5988 110,165,708.27 110,117,886.52 110,244,548.85 2.352 100.000% AA Aa1

Holdings by Security Type ACTC 2014 Measure BB (159782)
Base Currency: USD As of 03/31/2019 Dated: 04/09/2019

2Page 44



MM Fund

US Gov

Summary

 

* Grouped by: Security Type Category.     * Groups Sorted by: Security Type Category.     * Filtered By: Description ≠ "Receivable" and Description ≠ "Payable".     * Weighted by: Market Value + Accrued, except Book Yield by Base Book Value + Accrued.     * Holdings Displayed by:

Lot.

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Funds 61747C707 03/31/2019 4,536.50 1.0000 4,536.50 4,536.50 4,536.50 2.340 0.758% AAAm Aaa

Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Funds 61747C707 03/31/2019 4,536.50 1.0000 4,536.50 4,536.50 4,536.50 2.340 0.758% AAAm Aaa

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Treasury, United States Department of 912796SE0 08/22/2019 600,000.00 99.0561 594,336.60 594,096.03 594,295.49 2.451 99.242% A-1+ P-1

Treasury, United States Department of 912796SE0 08/22/2019 600,000.00 99.0561 594,336.60 594,096.03 594,295.49 2.451 99.242% A-1+ P-1

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

--- --- 08/21/2019 604,536.50 98.3133 598,873.10 598,632.53 598,831.99 2.450 100.000% AAA Aaa

Holdings by Security Type ACTC Series 2014-Interest Fd (159784)
Base Currency: USD As of 03/31/2019 Dated: 04/09/2019

1Page 45



Agency

MM Fund

Summary

 

* Grouped by: Security Type Category.     * Groups Sorted by: Security Type Category.     * Filtered By: Description ≠ "Receivable" and Description ≠ "Payable".     * Weighted by: Market Value + Accrued, except Book Yield by Base Book Value + Accrued.     * Holdings Displayed by:

Lot.

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 313384TJ8 02/21/2020 2,355,000.00 97.8719 2,304,883.25 2,303,033.00 2,303,818.00 2.442 99.681% A-1+ P-1

Federal Home Loan Banks Office of Finance 313384TJ8 02/21/2020 2,355,000.00 97.8719 2,304,883.25 2,303,033.00 2,303,818.00 2.442 99.681% A-1+ P-1

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Funds 61747C707 03/31/2019 7,385.97 1.0000 7,385.97 7,385.97 7,385.97 2.340 0.319% AAAm Aaa

Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Funds 61747C707 03/31/2019 7,385.97 1.0000 7,385.97 7,385.97 7,385.97 2.340 0.319% AAAm Aaa

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

--- --- 02/20/2020 2,362,385.97 97.5625 2,312,269.21 2,310,418.97 2,311,203.97 2.441 100.000% AAA Aaa

Holdings by Security Type ACTC Series 2014-Principal Fd (159786)
Base Currency: USD As of 03/31/2019 Dated: 04/09/2019

1Page 46



MM Fund

 

* Grouped by: Security Type Category.     * Groups Sorted by: Security Type Category.     * Filtered By: Description ≠ "Receivable" and Description ≠ "Payable".     * Weighted by: Market Value + Accrued, except Book Yield by Base Book Value + Accrued.     * Holdings Displayed by:

Lot.

Issuer Identifier Final Maturity Current Units Market
Price

Market Value Original Cost Book Value Book
Yield

% of Market
Value

S&P
Rating

Moody's
Rating

Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Funds 61747C707 03/31/2019 822.70 1.0000 822.70 822.70 822.70 2.340 100.000% AAAm Aaa

Morgan Stanley Institutional Liquidity Funds 61747C707 03/31/2019 822.70 1.0000 822.70 822.70 822.70 2.340 100.000% AAAm Aaa

Holdings by Security Type ACTC Series 2014-Revenue Fd (159787)
Base Currency: USD As of 03/31/2019 Dated: 04/09/2019

1Page 47



Additional Disclosure:

The information on this website is for general purposes only and is not intended to provide specific advice or recommendations.  All information presented on this website is obtained via electronic data transfer from the
Custodian. While this information is reconciled on a daily basis, when available, accuracy is relied upon from the Custodian. Please review the data carefully.  Should you have any questions regarding the information
presented, calculation methodology, investment portfolio or security detail, or any other facet of the data, please feel free to contact us.

This data is intended to detail our investment advisory activity as well as the activity of any client accounts managed by Public Trust Advisors, LLC (Public Trust). The custodian bank maintains the control of assets and
executes and settles all investment transactions. The custodian statement is the official record of security and cash holdings transactions. Public Trust recognizes that clients may use these reports to facilitate record keeping;
therefore it is recommended that the client reconcile this statement with their custodian bank statement.  Many custodians use a settlement date basis which may result in the need to reconcile due to a timing difference.
Please contact your relationship manager or call our toll free number 855-395-3954 with questions regarding your account.

Public Trust does not have the authority to withdraw funds from or deposit funds to the custodian. Our clients retain responsibility for their internal accounting policies; implementing and enforcing internal controls and
generating ledger entries or otherwise recording transactions.

Pricing sources from our reporting platform are provided by Clearwater Analytics®.  Clearwater utilizes a hierarchical pricing model with multiple options for pricing sources.  These options include custodial pricing, S&P Capital
IQ and other sources.  Since multiple pricing hierarchies are offered through Clearwater Analytics, and client preferences regarding pricing sources may differ, it is important to verify the specific pricing hierarchy for each
portfolio.  Securities with short maturities and infrequent secondary market trades are typically priced via mathematical calculations.  The securities in this investment portfolio, including shares of mutual funds, are not
guaranteed or otherwise protected by Public Trust, the FDIC (except for certain non-negotiable certificates of deposit) or any government agency, unless otherwise specifically stated. Investing involves risk, including the
possible loss of principal.

Past performance is not an indicator of future performance or results.

Public Trust statements present beginning and ending balances and are based on Market Value plus accrued interest on a Trade Date basis. Customized reports made available to the end user either from Public Trust or
through the online reporting platform may present information and portfolio analytics using various optional methods including, but not limited to, historical cost, amortized cost, and market value.  Custom reports may also differ
from the information received from the custodian as a result of additional formulas and filters created based on end user preferences.

The investment advisor providing these services is Public Trust Advisors, LLC, an investment adviser registered with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as
amended. Registration with the SEC does not imply a certain level of skill or training. Public Trust is required to maintain a written disclosure brochure of our background and business experience. If you would like to receive a
copy of our current disclosure brochure, privacy policy, or code of ethics please contact us at the address below.

Public Trust Advisors

717 17th St. Suite 1850

Denver, CO 80202

Page 48



 
 

Memorandum  6.9 

AA 

 DATE: May 16, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Patricia Reavey, Deputy Executive Director of Finance  

and Administration 

Lily Balinton, Director of Finance 

SUBJECT: Approve Alameda CTC Investment Policy 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Commission review and approve an update to the Alameda 

CTC investment policy adopted in May 2018. 

Summary 

An update to the Alameda CTC investment policy is attached in red line to show 

recommended changes to the policy since it was adopted in May 2018.   Recommended 

changes include adding one authorized investment type, as permitted by California 

Government Code, increasing the investment limit for the California Asset Management 

Program, and other administrative changes.  Staff is recommending that the Commission 

review and approve this update to the Alameda CTC investment policy as it is best practice 

for an investment policy to be reviewed and approved annually.   

Background 

The California Government Code Section 53600.5 states, “… the primary objective of a 

trustee shall be to safeguard the principal of the funds under its control. The secondary 

objective shall be to meet the liquidity needs of the depositor. The third objective shall be to 

achieve a return on the funds under its control.” These objectives also are reflected in 

Alameda CTC’s investment policy, in the order of priority demonstrated in the California 

Government Code.  The current Alameda CTC investment policy was adopted by the 

Commission in May 2018.   

Staff has reviewed the investment policy in consultation with investment advisors and is 

recommending the following changes to the currently adopted investment policy: 

 Adding AAA-rated asset-backed securities as an authorized investment type.  This 

security type is authorized in California Government Code, however at a lower rating.  

Page 49



Alameda CTC’s policy would continue to be more restrictive that the California 

Government Code.  The addition of this security type can provide more attractive 

yields and diversification benefits to the overall portfolio, 

 Increasing the investment limit for the California Asset Management Program which is 

needed as the portfolio grows to help manage liquidity needs, and 

 Other administrative changes. 

The attached investment policy (Attachment A) was developed in accordance with the 

California Government Code in order to define parameters and guide staff and investment 

advisors in managing Alameda CTC’s investment portfolio. The policy formalizes the 

framework for Alameda CTC’s investment activities that must be exercised to ensure 

effective and prudent fiscal management of Alameda CTC’s funds.  The guidelines are 

intended to be broad enough to allow staff and the investment advisors to function properly 

within the parameters of fiscal responsibility and authority, yet specific enough to adequately 

safeguard the investment assets.   

The primary objectives of the investment activities within the policy safeguard Alameda CTC 

assets by mitigating credit and interest rate risk, provide adequate liquidity to meet all 

operating requirements of Alameda CTC, and attain a market rate of return on investments 

taking into account the investment risk constraints of safety and liquidity needs.   

Through the proposed investment policy, the Commission appoints the Executive Director 

and the Deputy Executive Director of Finance and Administration as Investment Officers who 

are responsible for the investment program of the Alameda CTC and will act responsibly as 

custodians of the public trust.  The policy requires the Investment Officers to design internal 

controls around investments that would prevent the loss of public funds from fraud, 

employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, unanticipated changes in financial 

markets or imprudent actions by employees and officers of Alameda CTC.  It also allows the 

Investment Officers to periodically reset performance benchmarks to reflect changing 

investment objectives and constraints. 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact to the approval of this investment policy. 

Attachment: 

A. Draft Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 2019 

Page 50



Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 20198 

Page 1 of 12 

Alameda County Transportation Commission 

DRAFT 

Investment Policy 
May 20198 

I. Introduction

The intent of the Investment Policy of the Alameda County Transportation Commission

(Alameda CTC) is to define the parameters within which funds are to be managed.  The

policy formalizes the framework for Alameda CTC’s investment activities that must be

exercised to ensure effective and prudent fiscal and investment management of Alameda

CTC’s funds.  The guidelines are intended to be broad enough to allow Alameda CTC’s

Investment Officers (as defined below) to function properly within the parameters of

responsibility and authority, yet specific enough to adequately safeguard the investment

assets.

II. Governing Authority

The investment program shall be operated in conformance with federal, state, and other legal

requirements, including the California Government Code.

III. Scope

This policy applies to activities of Alameda CTC with regard to investing the financial assets

of all funds (except bond funds and retirement funds).  In addition, any funds held by trustees

or fiscal agents are excluded from these rules; however, all such funds are subject to

regulations established by the State of California.

Note that any excluded funds such as employee retirement funds, proceeds from certain bond

issuances and Other Postemployment Benefits (OPEB) trust assets are covered by separate

policies.

IV. General Objectives

The primary objectives, in order of priority, of investment activities shall be:

1. Safety

Safety of principal is the foremost objective of the investment program.  Investments shall

be undertaken in a manner that seeks to ensure the preservation of capital in the overall

portfolio.  The goal will be to mitigate credit and interest rate risk.

2. Liquidity

The investment portfolio shall remain sufficiently liquid to meet all operating requirements

that may be reasonably anticipated.

3. Return

The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a market rate of

return throughout budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account the investment risk

contraints of safety and liquidity needs.

6.9A

Page 51



Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 20198 

Page 2 of 12 

 

V. Standard of Care 

1. Prudence 

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be the "prudent investor" 

standard (California Government Code Section 53600.3) and shall be applied in the context 

of managing an overall portfolio.  Investment Officers acting in accordance with written 

procedures and the investment policy and exercising due diligence shall be relieved of 

personal responsibility for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes, 

provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion and appropriate action 

is taken to control adverse developments. 

 

 "When investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling, or managing 

public funds, a trustee shall act with care, skill, prudence, and diligence under the 

circumstances then prevailing, including, but not limited to, the general economic 

conditions and the anticipated needs of the agency, that a prudent person acting in a 

like capacity and familiarity with those matters would use in the conduct of funds of a 

like character and with like aims, to safeguard the principal and maintain the liquidity 

needs of the agency.  Within the limitations of this section and considering individual 

investments as part of an overall strategy, investments may be acquired as authorized 

by law." 

  

2. Delegation of Authority and Responsibilities 

Responsibilities of the Commission - The Commission, in its role as Alameda CTC’s 

governing body, will retain ultimate fiduciary responsibility for the portfolios.  They will 

receive quarterly reports for review, designate Investment Officers and annually review and 

adopt the investment policy. 

 

The Commission hereby designates the Executive Director and the Deputy Executive 

Director of Finance and Administration, as Treasurer, as the Investment Officers.     

 

Responsibilities of the Investment Officers - The Investment Officers are jointly 

responsible for the operation of the investment program.  The Investment Officers shall act 

in accordance with written procedures and internal controls for the operation of the 

investment program consistent with the Investment Policy.  All participants in the 

investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians of the public trust.  No 

officer may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this 

policy and supporting procedures.   

 

Responsibilities of the Investment Advisor - Alameda CTC may engage the services of one 

or more external investment advisors to assist in the management of the investment 

portfolio in a manner consistent with Alameda CTC’s objectives.  Investment advisors may 

be granted discretion to purchase and sell investment securities in accordance with this 

Investment Policy and the California Government Code and must be registered under the 

Investment Advisors Act of 1940 or be a bank, regulated by the Office of the Comptroller 

of the Currency (OCC) or Federal Reserve operating under the fiduciary exemption from 

the Security and Exchange Commission.  Any investment advisor shall be required to 

prepare and provide comprehensive reports on Alameda CTC’s investments on a monthly 

Page 52



Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 20198 

Page 3 of 12 

and quarterly basis, and as requested by Alameda CTC’s Investment Officers.  At no time 

shall the investment advisor maintain custody of Alameda CTC cash or assets.   

 

Responsibilities of the Custodian - A third party bank custodian shall hold Alameda CTC 

cash and assets under management by any investment advisor in the name of Alameda 

CTC.  The custodian shall receive direction from the investment advisor on settlement of 

investment transactions.   

 

VI. Selection of Financial Institutions and Broker/Dealers 

 Alameda CTC’s procedures are designed to encourage competitive bidding on transactions 

from an approved list of broker/dealers in order to provide for the best execution on 

transactions.   

 

 The Investment Officer, or the investment advisors, shall maintain a list of authorized 

broker/dealers and financial institutions that are approved for investment purposes.  This list 

will be developed after a process of due diligence confirming that the firms qualify under the 

Securities and Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1 (uniform net capital rule). Alameda CTC 

shall purchase securities only from authorized institutions or firms. 

 

 The Investment Officer, or the investment advisor, shall obtain competitive offers on all 

purchases of investment instruments purchased on the secondary market whenever possible.  

A competitive bid can be executed through a bidding process involving at least three separate 

brokers/financial institutions or through the use of a nationally recognized trading platform. 

 

VII. Safekeeping and Custody 

1. Delivery vs.  Payment 

All trades of marketable securities will be executed on a delivery vs. payment (DVP) basis 

to ensure that securities are deposited in Alameda CTC’s safekeeping institution prior to the 

release of funds. 

 

2.  Third-Party Safekeeping 

Securities will be held by an independent third-party safekeeping institution selected by 

Alameda CTC’s Investment Officers.  All securities will be evidenced by safekeeping 

receipts in Alameda CTC’s name.  The safekeeping institution shall annually provide a copy 

of its most recent report on internal controls – Service Organization Control Reports 

(formerly SAS 70) prepared in accordance with the Statement on Standards for Attestation 

Engagements (SSAE) No. 16 (effective June 15, 2011.) 

 

3.  Internal Controls  

The Investment Officers are responsible for establishing, maintaining and documenting an 

internal control structure designed to ensure that the assets of Alameda CTC are protected 

from loss, theft or misuse.  The controls shall be designed to prevent the loss of public funds 

arising from fraud, employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, unanticipated changes 

in financial markets, or imprudent actions by employees and officers of Alameda CTC. 

 

VIII.  Authorized Investments 

The following investments will be permitted by this policy and are those authorized in the 

California Government Code. 

Page 53



Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 20198 

Page 4 of 12 

 

1. United States Treasury notes, bonds, bills, or certificates of indebtedness, or those 

for which the faith and credit of the United States are pledged for the payment of 

principal and interest. 

 

a. Maximum maturity:  5 years 

b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  100% 

 

2. Federal agency or United States government-sponsored enterprise obligations, 

participations, or other instruments, including those issued by or fully guaranteed 

as to principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-

sponsored enterprises. 

 

a. Maximum maturity:  5 years 

b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  100% 

c. Type:  Senior debt obligations 

d. Maximum per issuer:  35% 

 

3. Repurchase Agreements used solely as short-term investments. 

 

The following collateral restrictions will be observed:  Only U.S. Treasury 

securities or Federal Agency securities, as described in VIII 1 and 2 above, will be 

acceptable collateral.  All securities underlying Repurchase Agreements must be 

delivered to Alameda CTC's custodian bank versus payment or be handled under 

a tri-party repurchase agreement.  The total of all collateral for each Repurchase 

Agreement must equal or exceed, on the basis of market value plus accrued 

interest, 102 percent of the total dollar value of the money invested by Alameda 

CTC for the term of the investment. Since the market value of the underlying 

securities is subject to daily market fluctuations, the investments in repurchase 

agreements shall be in compliance if the value of the underlying securities is 

brought back up to 102 percent no later than the next business day. For any 

Repurchase Agreement with a term of more than one day, the value of the 

underlying securities must be reviewed on a regular basis. 

 

 Market value must be calculated each time there is a substitution of collateral. 

 

 Alameda CTC or its trustee shall have a perfected first security interest under the 

Uniform Commercial Code in all securities subject to Repurchase Agreement. 

 

 Alameda CTC may enter into Repurchase Agreements with (1) primary dealers in 

U.S. Government securities who are eligible to transact business with, and who 

report to, the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, and (2) California and non-

California banking institutions having assets in excess of $25 billion and having 

debt rated in the highest short-term rating category as provided by a nationally 

recognized statistical rating organization. 

 

 Alameda CTC will enter into a Master Repurchase Agreement, substantially in 

the form approved by the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association 

Page 54



Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 20198 

Page 5 of 12 

(SIFMA) and by Alameda CTC’s counsel, with each firm with which it enters 

into Repurchase Agreements. 

 

a. Maximum maturity:  90 days 

b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  20% 

 

4. Obligations of the State of California or any local agency within the state, 

including bonds payable solely out of revenues from a revenue-producing 

property owned, controlled or operated by the state or any local agency or by a 

department, board, agency or authority of the state or any local agency. 

 

a. Maximum maturity:  5 years 

b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  10% 

c. Minimum credit quality:  A (S&P); or A2 (Moody’s); or A (Fitch) 

d. Maximum per issuer:  5% 

 

5. Registered treasury notes or bonds of any of the other 49 states in addition to 

California, including bonds payable solely out of revenues from a revenue-

producing property owned, controlled or operated by the state or by a department, 

board, agency or authority of any of the other 49 states, in addition to California. 

 

a. Maximum maturity:  5 years 

b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  10% 

c. Minimum credit quality:  A (S&P); or A2 (Moody’s): or A (Fitch) 

d. Maximum per issuer:  5% 

 

6. Bankers' Acceptances, otherwise known as bills of exchange or time drafts which 

are drawn on and accepted by a commercial bank. 

 

a. Maximum maturity: 180 days 

b. Maximum percent of portfolio: 40% 

c. Minimum credit quality:  A1 (S&P); or P1 (Moody’s); or F1 (Fitch) 

d. Maximum per issuer:  5% 

 

7. Commercial paper rated in the highest two short-term rating categories, as 

provided by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization.  The entity that 

issues the commercial paper shall meet all of the following conditions: (a) is 

organized and operating in the United States as a general corporation; (b) has total 

assets in excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000); and (c) has debt 

other than commercial paper, if any, that is rated "A" or higher by a nationally 

recognized statistical-rating organization. 

 

a. Maximum maturity:  270 days 

b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  25% 

c. Minimum credit quality:  A1 (S&P); or P1 (Moody’s); or F1 (Fitch) 

d. Maximum per issuer:  5% 

 

Page 55



Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 20198 

Page 6 of 12 

8. Medium-term notes, defined as all corporate and depository institution debt 

securities with a maximum remaining maturity of five years or less, issued by 

corporations organized and operating within the United States or by depository 

institutions licensed by the U.S. or any state and operating within the U.S.  

Medium-term corporate notes shall be rated a minimum of "A" or its equivalent 

by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 

 

a. Maximum maturity:  5 years 

b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  30% 

c. Minimum credit quality:  A (S&P); or A2 (Moody’s); or A (Fitch) 

d. Maximum per issuer:  5% 

 

9. Asset-backed securities, including any consumer receivable pass-through 

certificate, equipment lease-backed certificate, consumer receivable backed bond, 

or other pay-through bond with a maximum maturity of five years or less.  Asset-

backed securities shall be rated “AAA” or its equivalent or better by a nationally 

recognized statistical rating organization. 

 

a. Maximum Maturity:  5 years 

b. Maximum percent of portfolio: 20% 

c. Minimum credit quality: AAA (S&P); or Aaa (Moody’s); or AAA (Fitch) 

d. Maximum per issuer: 5% 

 

 

9.10. FDIC insured or fully collateralized time certificates of deposit in financial 

institutions located in California. 

 

a. Maximum maturity:  1 year  

b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  10% 

c. Maximum per issuer:  5% 

 

10.11. Negotiable certificates of deposit or deposit notes issued by a 

nationally or state-chartered bank, a savings association or a federal association, a 

state or federal credit union, or by a federally licensed or state-licensed branch of 

a foreign bank. 

 

a. Maximum maturity:  3 years 

b. Maximum percent of portfolio:  30% 

c. Minimum credit quality:  A (S&P); or A2 (Moody’s); or A (Fitch) 

d. Maximum per issuer:  5% 

 

11.12. State of California Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) 

 

Although LAIF may invest in securities not permitted in the Alameda CTC’s 

Investment Policy, such investments shall not exclude LAIF from the Alameda 

CTC’s list of eligible investments, provided that LAIF’s periodic reports allow the 

Investment Officer to adequately assess the risk inherent in LAIF’s portfolio.  

Funds invested in LAIF will follow LAIF policies and procedures.  

Page 56



Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 20198 

Page 7 of 12 

 

a. Maximum percent of portfoliodollar limit:  as determined by LAIF 

 

The LAIF portfolio shall be reviewed annually in order to monitor its continuing 

suitability as an investment option for the Alameda CTC. 

 

12.13. The California Asset Management Program (CAMP) 

 

a. Maximum percent of portfoliodollar limit:  10%double the LAIF limit 

 

The CAMP shall be reviewed annually in order to monitor its continuing 

suitability as an investment option for Alameda CTC.  Funds invested in CAMP 

will follow CAMP policies and procedures. 

 

13.14. Shares of beneficial interest issued by diversified management 

companies that are money market funds registered with the Securities and 

Exchange Commission under the Investment Company Act of 1940 (15 U.S.C. 

Sec. 80a-1, et seq.).  To be eligible for investment pursuant to this subdivision, 

these companies shall either:  (1) attain the highest ranking or the highest letter 

and numerical rating provided by not less than two nationally recognized 

statistical rating organizations; or (2) retain an investment advisor registered or 

exempt from registration with the Securities and Exchange Commission with not 

less than five years experience managing money market mutual funds with assets 

under management in excess of five hundred million dollars ($500,000,000).  

 

a. Maximum percent of portfolio:  20% 

b. Maximum per Prime Money Market Fund:  5% 

c. Maximum per Government Money Market Fund: 10% 

d. Minimum credit quality:  AAAm (S&P); or Aaa-mf (Moody’s); AAAmmf 

(Fitch) 

 

14.15. United States dollar denominated senior unsecured 

unsubordinated obligations issued or unconditionally guaranteed by the 

International Bank for Reconstruction and Development, International Finance 

Corporation, or Inter-American Development Bank and eligible for purchase and 

sale within the United States.  

 

a. Maximum maturity: 5 years 

b. Maximum percent of portfolio: 10% 

c. Minimum credit quality: AA (S&P); or Aa (Moody’s); or AA (Fitch) 

 

Important Notes: 

a) The percentage limitation for all categories of investments refers to the 

percentage in the overall Alameda CTC portfolio on the date the security or 

shares are purchased. 

 

b) If the credit rating of a security is downgraded below the minimum required 

rating level for a new investment of that security type subsequent to its purchase, 

Page 57



Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 20198 

Page 8 of 12 

the investment advisor shall promptly notify the Investment Officer.  The 

Investment Officer shall evaluate the downgrade on a case-by-case basis in order 

to determine if the security should be held or sold.  The Investment Officer will 

apply the general objectives of safety, liquidity, yield and legality to make the 

decision.   

IX. Ineligible Investments

Any security type or structure not specifically approved by this policy is hereby specifically

prohibited.  Security types which are thereby prohibited include, but are not limited to:

1. “Complex” derivative structures such as range notes, dual index notes, inverse floaters,

leveraged or de-leveraged floating-rate notes, or any other complex variable-rate or

structured note;

2. Interest-only strips that are derived from a pool of mortgages, or any security that could

result in zero interest accrual if held to maturity;

3. Non-agency mMortgage-backed pass-through securities;

4. Other non-agency mortgage-backed securities; and

5. Non-agency cCollateralized mortgage obligations; and.

6. Asset-backed securities

X. Investment Parameters

1. Credit Risk – Credit risk is the risk that a security or a portfolio will lose some or all of

its value due to a real or perceived change in the ability of the issuer to repay its debt.

The diversification requirements included in Section VIII are designed to mitigate

credit risk.  Alameda CTC shall additionally mitigate credit risk by adopting the

following diversification strategies:

a. Avoiding overconcentration in any one issuer or business sector;

b. Limiting investments in securities with higher credit risks; and

c. Maintaining a portion of the portfolio in a highly liquid investment such as

LAIF

2. Market Risk - Market risk is the risk that the portfolio will fluctuate due to changes in

the general level of interest rates.  Alameda CTC recognizes that, over time, longer-

term portfolios have the potential to achieve higher returns.  On the other hand, longer-

term portfolios have higher volatility of return.  Alameda CTC shall mitigate market

risk by providing adequate liquidity for short-term cash needs, and by making some

longer-term investments only with funds that are not needed for current cash flow

purposes.  Alameda CTC further recognizes that certain types of securities, including

variable rate securities, securities with principal paydowns prior to maturity, and

securities with embedded options, will affect the market risk profile of the portfolio

Page 58



Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 20198 

Page 9 of 12 

differently in different interest rate environments.  Alameda CTC, therefore, adopts the 

following strategies to control and mitigate its exposure to market risk: 

 

a. Alameda CTC shall invest in securities with varying maturities, maintaining a 

minimum of three months of budgeted operating expenditures in short term 

investments to provide sufficient liquidity for expected disbursements; 

 

b. The maximum percent of callable securities in the portfolio shall be 25%; 

 

c. The maximum stated final maturity of individual securities in the portfolio shall 

be five years, except as otherwise stated in this policy; 

 

d. Liquidity funds will be held in LAIF, CAMP or in money market instruments 

maturing within one year or less; 

 

e. Longer term/Core funds will be defined as the funds in excess of liquidity 

requirements. The investments in this portion of the porfolio will have 

maturities between 1 day and 5 years and will only be invested in higher quality 

and liquid securities; and 

 

f. The duration of the portfolio shall at all times be approximately equal to the 

duration of a Market Benchmark Index selected by Alameda CTC based on 

Alameda CTC’s investment objectives, constraints and risk tolerances, plus or 

minus 6 months25%.  Duration flexibility is necessary because of the short-term 

benchmarks utilized on the portfolio due to capital project cashflow demands. 

 

3. Maximum percentages for a particular issuer or investment type may be exceeded at a 

point in time subsequent to the purchase of a particular issuer or investment type.  

Securities need not be liquidated to realign the portfolio; however, consideration 

should be given to this matter when future purchases are made to ensure that 

appropriate diversification is maintained. 

 

XI. Performance and Program Evaluation 

 The investment portfolio will be managed in accordance with the parameters specified 

within this policy.  The portfolio should obtain a market average rate of return during a 

market/economic environment of stable interest rates.  A series of appropriate benchmarks 

shall be established against which portfolio performance shall be compared on a regular 

basis.  The benchmarks shall be reflective of the actual securities being purchased and risks 

undertaken and the benchmarks shall have a similar weighted average maturity and credit 

profile commensurate with investment risk constraints and liquidity needs of Alameda 

CTC.    

 

Alameda CTC may periodically update the performance benchmarks to reflect current 

investment objectives and constraints and shall communicate such changes to the 

investment advisor.  

 

Page 59



Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 20198 

Page 10 of 12 

Appendix I 

 

AUTHORIZED INVESTMENTS SUMMARY TABLE 

 
  PURCHASE MAXIMUM MINIMUM 

INVESTMENT % OF PORTFOLIO RESTRICTIONS MATURITY CREDIT QUALITY 

 
Per Cal. 

Gov’t Code 

Alameda 

CTC Policy 
Alameda CTC Policy 

Per Cal. 

Gov’t Code 

Alameda CTC 

Policy 

Per Cal.  

Gov’t Code 

Alameda CTC 

Policy 

 

US. Treasury Notes, Bonds, Bills or 

Certificates of Indebtedness 

 

100% 100% None 5 years 5 years NA NA 

Federal or U.S. Sponsored Obligations 

fully guaranteed by Federal Agencies or 

U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises 

100% 100% Max 35% per issuer 5 years 5 years NA Senior Debt 

Repurchase Agreements NA 20% 

Strict collateral 

requirements;  Master 

Repurchase Agreement  

1 year 90 days NA NA 

State of California and California Local 

Agency Bonds 
NA 10% Max 5% per issuer 5 years 5 years NA 

A (S&P) or A2 

(Moody’s) or A 

(Fitch) 

Bonds of any of the other 49 states in 

addition to California 
NA 10% Max 5% per issuer 5 years 5 years NA 

A (S&P) or A2 

(Moody’s) or A 

(Fitch) 

Bankers’ Acceptances 40% 40% Max 5% per issuer  180 days 180 days NA 

A1 (S&P) or P1 

(Moody’s) or F1 

(Fitch) 

Page 60



Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 20198 

Page 11 of 12 

  PURCHASE MAXIMUM MINIMUM 

INVESTMENT % OF PORTFOLIO RESTRICTIONS MATURITY CREDIT QUALITY 

 
Per Cal. 

Gov’t Code 

Alameda 

CTC Policy 
Alameda CTC Policy 

Per Cal. 

Gov’t Code 

Alameda CTC 

Policy 

Per Cal.  

Gov’t Code 

Alameda CTC 

Policy 

Commercial paper of US corporations 

with total assets exceeding $500,000,000 
25% 25% 

Max 5% of outstanding 

paper of any single issuer & 

max 5% of portfolio of any 

one issuer 

270 days 270 days A1 or P1 or F1 

A1 (S&P) or P1 

(Moody’s) or F1 

(Fitch) 

Medium Term Corporate Notes  of U.S. 

Corporations 
30% 30% Max 5% per issuer 5 years 5 years A 

A (S&P) or A2 

(Moody’s) or A 

(Fitch) 

Asset-Backed Securities 20% 20% Max 5% per issuer 5 years 5 years AA 

AAA (S&P) or 

Aaa (Moody’s) 

or AAA (Fitch) 

California Collateralized Time Deposits NA 10% Max 5% per issuer NA 1 year NA NA 

Negotiable Certificate of Deposits 30% 30% Max 5% per issuer 5 years 3 years NA 

A (S&P) or A2 

(Moody’s) or A 

(Fitch) 

State of California- Local Agency 

Investment Fund (LAIF) 
NA NA 

As limited by LAIF 

(currently $65 million) 
NA NA NA NA 

California Asset Management Program NA NA10% NADouble the LAIF limit NA NA NA NA 

Shares of Beneficial Interests (Money 

Market Funds)  
20% 20% 

Max 5% per Prime fund, 

Max 10% per Government 

fund  

NA N/A AAA  

AAAm (S&P) 

or Aaa-mf 

(Moody’s) or 

AAAmmf 

(Fitch) 

Page 61



Alameda CTC Investment Policy May 20198 

Page 12 of 12 

  PURCHASE MAXIMUM MINIMUM 

INVESTMENT % OF PORTFOLIO RESTRICTIONS MATURITY CREDIT QUALITY 

 
Per Cal. 

Gov’t Code 

Alameda 

CTC Policy 
Alameda CTC Policy 

Per Cal. 

Gov’t Code 

Alameda CTC 

Policy 

Per Cal.  

Gov’t Code 

Alameda CTC 

Policy 

Obligations issued or unconditionally 

guaranteed by the International Bank for 

Reconstruction and Development, 

International Finance Corporation, or 

Inter-American Development Bank 

30% 10% NA 5 years 5 years AA 

AA (S&P) or 

Aa (Moody’s) 

or AA (Fitch) 

 

 

Page 62



 
 

Memorandum  6.10 

AA 

 DATE: May 16, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Seung Cho, Director of Procurement and Information Technology 

E.W. Cheng, Senior Administrative Analyst 

SUBJECT: Approve Amendment No. 5 to Professional Services Agreement No. 

A13-0088 with Acumen Building Enterprise, Inc. for Planning, Policy, 

Communications, and Administrative Support Services 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Commission approve Amendment No. 5 to Professional 

Services Agreement No. A13-0088 with Acumen Building Enterprise, Inc., to extend the 

period of performance for one additional year, from June 30, 2019 to June 30, 2020. 

Summary 

Alameda CTC issued a Request for Proposal for administrative, policy, planning and 

communications support services in September 2013, which covers an array of general 

services such as public meeting support for Alameda CTC’s Commission and Community 

Advisory Committees, and technical support for Alameda CTC. Acumen Building Enterprise, 

Inc., an Alameda CTC-certified Small Local Business Enterprise (SLBE) firm with offices in 

Oakland, California, was selected as the top-ranked firm as a result of the RFP. Alameda CTC 

now wishes to amend the existing agreement to provide staff with the flexibility to adjust to 

changes in workload and to allow for additional time for consultant to complete existing 

assignments and transition key tasks to other members within the organization. 

Acumen Building Enterprise, Inc. did not report a conflict in accordance with the  

Levine Act. 

Fiscal Impact:  The proposed action does not encumber any additional Alameda CTC 

funds. Staff intends to utilize the remaining balance from the existing contract budget to 

cover the anticipated expenditures in fiscal year 2019-2020, and this balance has been 

included in Alameda CTC’s fiscal year 2019-2020 proposed budget.  

Page 63



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 64



 
 

Memorandum  6.11 

AA 

 DATE: May 16, 2019 

TO: I-580 Express Lane Policy Committee 

FROM: Ashley Tam, Associate Transportation Engineer 

Liz Rutman, Director of Express Lanes Implementation and Operations 

SUBJECT: I-580 Express Lanes (PN 1373.002): Monthly Operation Update 

 

Recommendation 

This item is to provide the Commission with an update on the operation of the I-580 Express 

Lanes. This item is for information only. 

Summary 

The Alameda CTC is the project sponsor of the I-580 Express Lanes, located in the Tri-

Valley corridor through the cities of Dublin, Pleasanton, and Livermore, which opened to 

traffic on February 19th and 22nd of 2016. See Attachment A for express lane  

operation limits. 

The February/March 2019 operations report indicates that the express lane facility 

continues to provide travel time savings and travel reliability throughout the day. Express 

lane users typically experienced higher speeds and lesser average lane densities than the 

general purpose lanes, resulting in a more comfortable drive and travel time savings for 

express lane users. 

Background 

The I-580 Express Lanes, extending from Hacienda Drive to Greenville Road in the 

eastbound direction and from Greenville Road to the I-680 Interchange in the westbound 

direction, were opened to traffic on February 19 th and 22nd of 2016 in the eastbound and 

westbound directions, respectively.  Motorists using the I -580 Express Lanes facility benefit 

from travel time savings and travel reliability as the express lanes optimize the corridor 

capacity by providing a new choice to drivers. Single occupancy vehicles (SOVs) may 

choose to pay a toll and travel within the express lanes, while carpools, clean-air vehicles, 

motorcycles, and transit vehicles enjoy the benefits of toll-free travel in the express lanes.  

An All Electronic Toll (AET) collection method has been employed to collect tolls. Toll rates 

are calculated based on real-time traffic conditions (speed and volume) in express and 

Page 65



 

general purpose lanes and can change as frequently as every three minutes.  California 

Highway Patrol (CHP) officers provide enforcement services and the California 

Department of Transportation (Caltrans) provides roadway maintenance services through 

reimbursable service agreements. 

February 2019 Operations Update: 

Approximately 612,000 and 666,000 express lane trips were recorded during operational 

hours in February and March, respectively, which is an average of approximately 31,200 

daily trips. Table 1 presents the breakdown of trips based on toll classification and 

direction of travel. Pursuant to the Commission-adopted “Ordinance for Administration of 

Tolls and Enforcement of Toll Violations for the I-580 Express Lanes,” if a vehicle uses the 

express lanes without a valid FasTrak® toll tag then the license plate read by the 

Electronic Tolling System is used to assess a toll either by means of an existing FasTrak 

account to which the license plate is registered or by issuing a notice of toll evasion 

violation to the registered vehicle owner. Approximately 70 percent of all trips by users 

without a toll tag are assessed tolls via FasTrak account. 

Table 1. Express Lane Trips by Type and Direction 

Trip Classification 
Percent of Trips1 

February/March 

By Type 

HOV-eligible with FasTrak flex tag 49% 

SOV with FasTrak standard or flex tag 34% 

No valid toll tag in vehicle 17% 

By Direction 
Westbound 44% 

Eastbound 56% 

1. Excludes “trips” by users that had no toll tag and either no license plate or one that could not 

be read by the Electronic Tolling System with sufficient accuracy that a toll could be assessed.  

 

Express lane users typically experience higher speeds and lesser lane densities than the 

general purpose lanes. Lane density is measured by the number of vehicles per mile per 

lane and reported as Level of Service (LOS). LOS is a measure of freeway performance 

based on vehicle maneuverability and driver comfort levels, graded on a scale of A 

(best) through F (worst). 

Attachment B presents the speed and density heat maps for the I-580 corridor during 

revenue hours for the six-month period from October 2018 – March 2019. These heat maps 

are a graphical representation of the overall condition of the corridor, showing the 

average speeds and densities along the express lane corridor and throughout the day for 

both the express and general purpose lanes, and are used to evaluate whether the 

express lanes are meeting both federal and state performance standards. During these six 

months, the average speeds at each traffic sensor location in the westbound express 

lane ranged from 50 to over 70 mph during the morning commute hours (5 am to 11 am) 

with the lower speeds occurring between Isabel Avenue and Santa Rita Road. The 

Page 66



 

express lane operated at LOS C or better at most times, with a 30-minute period of LOS D 

experienced near Fallon Road in the morning commutes. By comparison, the general 

purpose lanes experienced average speeds as low as 45 mph and LOS D throughout 

longer sections of the corridor. During the evening commute, a small period of 

westbound reverse-commute congestion between Hacienda Road and San Ramon Road 

is observed from 4 pm to 6 pm, though the express lane continued to operate at LOS B or 

better during this time. Outside of the commute hours, westbound express lane users 

experience average speeds of 65 mph or higher and average LOS A.  

In the eastbound direction, average express lane speeds from October 2018 through 

March 2019 ranged from 20 to 70 mph during the evening commute hours (2 pm – 7 pm) 

with the lowest speeds occurring at the eastern terminus of the express lanes, between 

Vasco Road and Greenville Road. Average express lane speeds throughout the rest of 

the day exceeded 65 mph. Most of the express lane corridor operates at LOS C or better 

during the evening commute hours, with limited sections of degraded LOS at the western 

end of the express lanes between 3 pm and 5:30 pm and at the eastern terminus 

between 3 pm and 7 pm. The express lanes averaged LOS B or better throughout the rest 

of the day in all locations. By comparison, the general purpose lanes experienced lower 

speeds and degraded levels of services for longer periods of time than the express lanes 

during the evening commute hours.  

Table 2 presents the maximum posted toll rates to travel the entire corridor in each 

direction in February and March 2019, along with the average toll assessed to toll-paying 

users. 

Table 2. Toll Rate Data 

Month Direction 
Maximum Posted Toll 

(Travel Entire Corridor) 

Average Assessed1 

Toll (All Toll Trips) 

February/ 

March 

Westbound $13.00 (8 of 41 days) $2.50 

Eastbound $12.00 (21 of 41 days) $3.54 

1 Assessed toll is the toll rate applied to non-toll-free trips and reflects potential revenue generated 

by the trip. Not all potential revenue results in actual revenue received.  

 

Through March of Fiscal Year 2018-19, the I-580 Express Lanes recorded over 6.3 million 

total trips. Total gross revenues received include $9.94 million in toll revenues and $2.11 

million in violation fees and penalties; the pro-rated forecast operating budget is $4.17 

million. 

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact associated with the requested action. 

Attachments: 

A. I-580 Express Lanes Location Map 

B. I-580 Corridor Express Lanes Heat Maps October 2018 – March 2019 

Page 67



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 68



I-580 Policy Committee

I-580 Express Lanes

Location Map
6.11A

Page 69



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 70



I-580 Express Lanes Policy Committee Meeting 1

Greenville Rd

Vasco Rd

N. First St

N. Livermore Ave

Isabel Ave

Airway Blvd

Fallon Rd

Santa Rita Rd

Hacienda Rd

Hopyard Rd

I-6807 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

1 
PM

2 
PM

3 
PM

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

5 
A

M

6 
A

M

7 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

1 
PM

2 
PM

3 
PM

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

5 
A

M

6 
A

M

Westbound I-580 Corridor Speed Heat Maps
Monday-Friday, October 2018 – March 2019

Express Lane General Purpose

Di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 Tr
av

el

Mile

0

12

3

6

9

<30 mph 30 - 44 45 - 54 55 - 64 ≥65 mph

6.11B

Page 71



I-580 Express Lanes Policy Committee Meeting 2

Greenville Rd

Vasco Rd

N. First St

N. Livermore Ave

Isabel Ave

Airway Blvd

Fallon Rd

Santa Rita Rd

Hacienda Rd

Hopyard Rd

I-680 3 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

7 
PM

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

1 
PM

2 
PM

5 
A

M

6 
A

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

3 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

7 
PM

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

1 
PM

2 
PM

5 
A

M

6 
A

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

Westbound I-580 Corridor Density Heat Maps
Monday-Friday, October 2018 – March 2019

Express Lane General Purpose

LOS A LOS B LOS C LOS D LOS E LOS F

Di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 Tr
av

el

0

12

3

6

9

Mile

Page 72



I-580 Express Lanes Policy Committee Meeting 3

Greenville Rd

Vasco Rd

N. First St

N. Livermore Ave

Isabel Ave

Airway Blvd

Fallon Rd

Santa Rita Rd

Hacienda Rd6 
A

M

5 
A

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

1 
PM

2 
PM

3 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

7 
PM

6 
A

M

5 
A

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

1 
PM

2 
PM

3 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

7 
PM

Eastbound I-580 Corridor Speed Heat Maps
Monday-Friday, October 2018 – March 2019

Express Lane General Purpose

Di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 Tr
av

el

Mile
0

2

4

6

8

10

<30 mph 30 - 44 45 - 54 55 - 64 ≥65 mph

Page 73



I-580 Express Lanes Policy Committee Meeting 4

Greenville Rd

Vasco Rd

N. First St

N. Livermore Ave

Isabel Ave

Airway Blvd

Fallon Rd

Santa Rita Rd

Hacienda Rd 6 
A

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

5 
A

M

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

1 
PM

2 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

7 
PM

3 
PM

6 
A

M

7 
A

M

8 
A

M

9 
A

M

5 
A

M

10
 A

M

11
 A

M

12
 P

M

1 
PM

2 
PM

4 
PM

5 
PM

6 
PM

7 
PM

3 
PM

Eastbound I-580 Corridor Density Heat Maps
Monday-Friday, October 2018 – March 2019

Express Lane

LOS A LOS B LOS C LOS D LOS E LOS F

Di
re

ct
io

n 
of

 Tr
av

el

Mile
0

2

4

6

8

10

General Purpose

Page 74



 
 
 

Memorandum 6.12 

 

DATE: May 16, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Saravana Suthanthira, Principal Transportation Planner 

Chris G. Marks, Associate Transportation Planner 

SUBJECT: Congestion Management Program (CMP): Summary of the Alameda 

CTC’s Review and Comments on Environmental Documents and 

General Plan Amendments 

 

Recommendation 

This item updates the Commission with a summary of Alameda CTC’s review and comments 

on Environmental Documents and General Plan Amendments. This item is for  

information only. 

Summary 

This item fulfills one of the requirements under the Land Use Analysis Program (LUAP) element 

of the Congestion Management Program. As part of the LUAP, Alameda CTC reviews 

Notices of Preparations (NOPs), General Plan Amendments (GPAs), and Environmental 

Impact Reports (EIRs) prepared by local jurisdictions and comments on the potential impact 

of proposed land development on the regional transportation system.  

Since the last update on April 8, 2018, the Alameda CTC reviewed one NOP and one Draft 

Supplemental EIR. Responses were submitted and are included as Attachments A and B.  

Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact associated with this item. 

Attachments: 

A. Response to the NOP of an EIR for the Veterans Affairs Alameda Multi-Specialty 

Outpatient Clinic and National Cemetery Project 

B. Response to the Notice of Availability of a Draft SEIR for the Upper Hearst 

Development for the Goldman School of Public Policy and Minor Amendment to the 

2020 Long Range Development Plan for the UC Berkeley campus 

Page 75



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 76



6.12A

Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



6.12B

Page 81



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 82



 
 

Memorandum  6.13 

 
DATE: May 16, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Trinity Nguyen, Director of Project Delivery 

SUBJECT: Route 84 Expressway Widening (PN 1210.002): Approve Project Actions 
for the Closeout Phase  

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Commission approve the following actions related to the 
Route 84 Expressway Widening project: 

1. Authorize the Executive Director to execute Amendment No. 6 to the Professional 
Services Agreement No. A05-0004 with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. (AECOM) for 
an additional amount of $460,000 for a total not-to-exceed amount of $16,710,000 and a 
18-month extension to provide extended project closeout activities; 

2. Authorize Amendment No. 2 to Professional Services Agreement A17-0010 with H.T. 
Harvey & Associates Ecological Consultants (HAEC) for an additional amount of $37,530 
for a total not-to-exceed amount of $178,847 to provide expanded environmental 
mitigation services; and 

3. Authorize the release of an Invitation For Bid for three years of plant establishment 
services. 

Summary 

The SR-84 Expressway Widening Project in the City of Livermore is one of several projects 
on SR-84 that will bring the overall facility to expressway standards.  Alameda CTC 
contracted with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. (AECOM) to design and implement the 
project in two segments.  The North Segment from Jack London Boulevard to Concannon 
Boulevard (PN 1210001), which widened the highway from two lanes to six lanes, was 
successfully completed in June 2014. The South Segment from Concannon Boulevard to 
Ruby Hills Drive (PN 1210002), which widens the highway from two lanes to four lanes, was 
awarded on September 30, 2015 and opened to the public on November 27, 2018.  The 
total cost for the South Segment is $109,930,000. The project budget includes $39,400,000 
from 2000 Measure B, $47,030,000 from STIP-RIP, $10,000,000 from 2014 Measure BB, 

Page 83



 

$10,000,000 from the Tri Valley Transportation Council (TVTC), $2,000,000 CMA TIP and 
$1,500,000 from City of Livermore.  

In addition to sponsoring the project, Alameda CTC is the implementing agency for the 
preliminary engineering, environmental studies, final design and right of way phases.  
Although the facility is in use, there remains several significant project obligations that 
Alameda CTC is responsible to perform such as completion of the environmental 
mitigation, right-of-way certification, and project asbuilts.   

In 2005, under a competitive selection process, Alameda CTC selected AECOM to 
provide project approval and environmental clearance services and subsequently 
approved Agreement A05-0004. AECOM was also contracted to provide design services 
including right-of-way acquisition and permitting. To ensure proper closeout and 
acceptance of the project by the State, additional right-of-way services will be required.  
The estimated cost for this effort is $460,000.    

In August 2016, Alameda CTC contracted with HAEC to provide off-site mitigation 
planting and monitoring/reporting services. To ensure full compliance with the provisions 
of the environmental permit, expanded mitigation monitoring, maintenance and 
reporting will be required.  The estimated cost for this effort is $37,530. 

Additionally, on-site restoration landscaping was implemented as part of the roadway 
contract including two years of plant establishment.  A contract will need to be procured 
to provide plant establishment services for the remaining three years required by the 
project permit. 

The recommended actions would increase the contract not-to-exceed amounts for 
Agreement A05-0004 with AECOM and Agreement A17-0010 with HAEC as shown in Table 
1 and authorize additional time for the fulfilment of all remaining project obligations. 

Background 

As the project sponsor, the Alameda CTC has completed preliminary engineering, 
environmental studies, and detailed design and right of way phases for the South 
Segment. Caltrans is responsible for advertising, award, and administering the civil 
construction of the South Segment.  The construction contract for the South Segment was 
awarded on September 30, 2015, and on November 27, 2018, the South Segment was 
opened to traffic.  On-site restoration landscaping has been completed, and two of the 
five years of plant establishment will be completed by December 31, 2019 under the 
roadway contract.  Concurrently, Alameda CTC is implementing off-site mitigation 
planting at Murray Ranch and also is required to provide monitoring and reporting for a 
five-year period at this location.   

The Construction phase budget (which includes activities through project closeout) totals 
$59.4 million from a combination of local and state funds.  

Page 84



 

Project Closeout 

In 2005, under a competitive selection process, Alameda CTC selected AECOM to 
provide project approval and environmental clearance services and subsequently 
approved Agreement A05-0004.  AECOM was also contracted to provide design services 
including right-of-way acquisition and permitting. The right of way acquisition for the 
project is complex involving several condemnations; including two quarries and several 
private properties. The budget associated with right of way closeout was deferred until 
such time that a better assessment could be made.  Currently, all but one of the right of 
way agreements have been finalized.  The estimate to perform the complete right of way 
closeout activities, including monumentation, surveys, and recording, is estimated to  
be $460,000.   

The proposed amendment is for a value of $460,000 for a contract total not-to-exceed 
amount of $16,250,000.  The project funding plan includes budget from Measure B funds 
to fund mitigation services. It is estimated that the work will be completed by December 
31, 2020.  Attachment A summarizes the contract actions related to Agreement  
No. A05-0004. 

Mitigation Monitoring/Reporting 

Alameda CTC received bids from three vendors for mitigation planting and monitoring/ 
reporting services at Murray Ranch through the Informal Bid Process. This resulted in the 
award of a contract to HAEC (Agreement A17-0010) on August 5, 2016 in the amount of 
$66,317.  In October 2017, an amendment was authorized for $75,000 to add additional 
field plantings to replace plants that did not survive the first two years of mitigation 
planting and to expand the mitigation monitoring/reporting for an additional three-year 
period. Based upon the results of the first two-years, it is recommended that additional 
maintenance and monitoring be performed to ensure that a sufficient number of plants 
will survive through the end of the five-year establishment period.  The estimated cost of 
this effort is $37,530 and includes: 

• Maintenance of mitigation plantings basins in Year 4 (2020) and Year 5 (2021) 
• Invasive plant control in Year 4 and Year 5 
• Ecological monitoring and reporting in Year 4 and Year 5 

The project funding plan includes budget from Measure B funds to fund mitigation 
services. 

The proposed amendment is for a value of $37,530 for a contract total not-to-exceed 
amount of $178,847.  Attachment B summarizes the contract actions related to 
Agreement No. A17-0010. 

Staff recommends that the Commission authorize the Executive Director to execute 
amendments to project agreements with AECOM Technical Services, Inc. (Agreement 
A05-0004) and to H.T. Harvey & Associates Ecological Consultants (Agreement A17-0010) 

Page 85



 

for additional budget and time to provide required services to project completion as 
shown in Table 1 below.  

 
Table 1: Summary of Proposed Contract Amendment Modifications 

Agreement No. Proposed Modifications 

A05-0004 
(AECOM) 

Increase contract budget by $460,000 to new contract not-to-exceed total 
of $16,710,000. 

Extend expiration date by 18 months to December 31, 2020. 

A17-0010 
(HAEC) 

Increase contract budget by $37,530 to new contract not-to exceed total of 
$178,847. 

 

Plant Establishment Services: 

As part of the permit requirements, impacted landscape features were to be replaced. In 
September 2015, the final bid amount for the roadway contract came in under budget 
allowing an opportunity for the on-site mitigation to be incorporated into the roadway 
contract.  Replacement planting including a two-year plant establishment period, was 
incorporated into the roadway contract by change order.  The remaining three years 
required by the project permit could not be accommodated by the roadway contract.  
To fulfill the permit requirements, a separate contract to provide the remaining three 
years of plant establishment services will be procured and would need to be in place by 
January 1, 2020 after the roadway contract is accepted.  Upon approval staff, will 
prepare an IFB to be released in August 2019 and return to the Commission with an award 
recommendation in November 2019.     

Levine Act Statement: The AECOM and HAEC teams did not report a conflict in accordance 
with the Levine Act. 

Fiscal Impact: The actions will authorize the encumbrance of $497,530 in previously 
allocated Measure B funds for subsequent expenditure. This amount is included in the project 
funding plan and sufficient budget is included in the Alameda CTC Adopted FY 2018-19 
Capital Program Budget. 

Attachments: 

A. Table A: Summary of Agreement No. A05-0004 
B. Table B: Summary of Agreement No. A17-0010 
C. State Route 84 Expressway – South Segment Project Fact Sheet 
 

Page 86



Table A:  Summary of Agreement No. A05-0004 6.13A 

Contract Status Work Description Value Total Contract Not- 

to-Exceed Value 

Original Professional Services 

Agreement with AECOM 

Technical Services, Inc. 
(A05-0004) 

March 2005 

Provide project approval and 

environmental clearance (PA&ED) 

services. 

NA $2,500,000 

Amendment No. 1 

July 2007 

Provide additional budget for design and 

right-of-way engineering services. 

$8,750,000 $11,250,000 

Amendment No. 2 

May 2011 

Provide additional budget for design, right-

of-way engineering and right-of-way 

acquisition services. 

$2,500,000 $13,750,000 

Amendment No. 3 

September 2014 
Provide additional budget and two-year 

time extension for continued design 

services during construction. 

$1,000,000 $14,750,000 

Amendment No. 4 

February 2016 

Provide additional budget and six-month 

time extension for additional right of way 

acquisition, utility relocation, 

environmental mitigation and landscape 

design services. 

$1,000,000 $15,750,000 

Amendment No. 5 October 2017 Provide additional budget and six-month 

time extension to June 30, 2019 for design 

services during construction. 

$500,000 $16,250,000 

Proposed Amendment No. 6 

May 2019 
(This Agenda Item) 

Provide additional budget and 18-month 

time extension to December 31, 2020 for 

extended project closeout activities. 

$460,000 $16,710,000 

Total Amended Contract Not-to-Exceed Amount $16,710,000 

Page 87



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

Page 88



Table B:  Summary of Agreement No. A17-0010 6.13B 

Contract Status Work Description Value Total Contract Not-to- 

Exceed Value 

Original Professional Services 

Agreement with H.T. Harvey & 

Associates Ecological 

Consultants 
(A17-0010) 

August 2016 

Provide mitigation monitoring & reporting 

at Murray Ranch Mitigation Site. 

NA $66,317 

Proposed Amendment No. 1 

October 2017 

Provide additional budget and three-year 

time extension to December 31, 2022 to 

meet resource agency permit 

requirements. 

$75,000 $141,317 

Proposed Amendment No.2       

May 2019 

(This Agenda Item) 

Provide additional budget for expanded 

monitoring, maintenance and reporting to 

meet resource agency permit 

requirements. 

$37,530 $178,847 

Total Amended Contract Not-to-Exceed Amount $178,847 

Page 89



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

This page intentionally left blank 

Page 90



CAPITAL PROJECT FACT SHEET PN: 1210002

The State Route 84 Expressway – South Segment project involves 
widening a 2.4-mile section of State Route (SR) 84 (Isabel Avenue) 
from Ruby Hill Drive to Cancannon Boulevard from two lanes to 
four lanes.

A 2008 Project Study Report (PSR) sponsored by the Tri-Valley 
Transportation Council (TVTC) identified several improvement 
projects along SR-84 (Isabel Avenue corridor) between Interstate 
680 (I-680) and Interstate 580 (I-580) that could be constructed in 
stages as funding became available. They include:

• Improvement of SR-84 as a regional connection between I-580
and Ruby Hill Drive

• Updating SR-84 to a continuous four lane facility – Pigeon Pass 
to I-680 interchange

• Improvement of local traffic circulation through added 
capacity on SR-84 and intersection improvements

• Provision of partial access control to the SR-84
expressway facility

Environmental clearance for the State Route 84 Expressway –
South Segment project was achieved in August 2008 and the 
project was Ready to List (RTL) spring 2015. Caltrans was 
responsible for the advertisement, award and administration of 
the project. 

State Route 84 Expressway –
South Segment

PROJECT OVERVIEW

MAY 2019

PROJECT NEED
• SR-84 serves as the primary alternative route to the I-680/I-580

corridor. SR-84 experiences heavy traffic uses from local travel 
as well as inter-regional traffic.

• SR-84 between Ruby Hill Drive and Cancannon Boulevard is an 
existing two-lane facility, one lane in each direction.

• This segment of SR-84 is not up to expressway standards,
including access control.

• Improvements are needed at existing intersections and ramps 
for safety and operational efficiency.

• A bikeway is proposed along the SR-84 corridor from I-680 to 
I-580. Existing pedestrian and bicycle access along this 
segment of SR-84 is limited due to gaps in multi-use trails.

PROJECT BENEFITS
• Widens existing roadway to expressway standards

• Relieves congestion and improve safety

• Improves regional and interregional connectivity

6.13C

Page 91



Alameda County Transportation Commission    1111 Broadway, Suite 800    Oakland, CA  94607    510.208.7400    www.AlamedaCTC.org

Note: Information on this fact sheet is subject to periodic updates.

City of Livermore, Alameda County, Caltrans, City of Pleasanton, 
Federal Highway Administration, Metropolitan Transportation 
Commission and the Tri-Valley Transportation Council

STATE ROUTE 84 EXPRESSWAY – SOUTH SEGMENT

PARTNERS AND STAKEHOLDERS

STATUS
Implementing Agency: Alameda CTC

Current Phase: Construction

• Caltrans awarded the construction contract in September 2015.

• Major work activities started in spring 2016 and was opened to 
the public in November 2018.

COST ESTIMATE BY PHASE ($ X 1,000)

PE/Environmental $1,427

Final Design $8,782

Right-of-Way $40,284

Construction $59,437

Total Expenditures $109,930

SCHEDULE BY PHASE

Measure BB $10,000

Measure B1 $39,400

State (STIP-RIP/STIP-TE)2 $47,030

Local Other (CMA-TIP)3 $2,000

Local (Tri-Valley Transportation Council) $10,000

Local (City of Livermore) $1,500

Total Revenues $109,930

FUNDING SOURCES ($ X 1,000)

1 Total Measure B (MB) commitment for this project includes obligation 
of $37.03 million to Exchange Program (STIP) in addition to MB 
amount shown above.

2 State funding includes the State Transportation Improvement Program 
Regional Improvement Program (STIP-RIP) and the State 
Transportation Improvement Program Transportation Enhancement 
Projects (STIP-TE).

3 Local funding includes Alameda County’s Congestion Management 
Agency Transportation Improvement Program (CMA-TIP).

Begin End

Preliminary 
Engineering/
Environmental

April 2005 August 2008

Final Design August 2007 March 2015

Right-of-Way March 2008 March 2015

Advertisement/
Award

Spring 2015 September 2015

Construction October 2015 November 2018

SR-84 Expressway – South Segment. Construction of bridge widening at 
Arroyo Del Valle.

Southbound on Isabel Avenue at Vallecitos Road.

Page 92



 
 
 

 

Memorandum  8.1 

 

DATE: May 16, 2019 

TO: Alameda County Transportation Commission 

FROM: Tess Lengyel, Deputy Executive Director of Planning and Policy 

SUBJECT: Legislative Positions and Receive an Update on Federal, State, and 
Local Legislative Activities 

 

Recommendation 

It is recommended that the Commission approve legislative and policy positions and 
receive an update on federal, state, and local legislative activities. 

Summary 

The May 2019 legislative update provides information on federal and state legislative 
activities and recommendations on current legislation. 

Background 

The Commission approved the 2019 Legislative Program in December 2018. The 
purpose of the legislative program is to establish funding, regulatory, and 
administrative principles to guide Alameda CTC’s legislative advocacy. The final 
2018 Legislative Program is divided into six sections: Transportation Funding; Project 
Delivery and Operations; Multimodal Transportation, Land Use, and Safety; Climate 
Change and Technology; Goods Movement; and Partnerships. The program is 
designed to be broad and flexible to allow Alameda CTC the opportunity to pursue 
legislative and administrative opportunities that may arise during the year, and to 
respond to political processes in the region as well as in Sacramento and 
Washington, DC.  

Each month, staff brings updates to the Commission on legislative issues related to 
the adopted legislative program, including recommended positions on bills as well 
as legislative updates. 

  

Page 93



 

Federal Update 

Alameda CTC staff will provide a verbal update on federal legislative activities and 
a summary of the Washington, DC legislative visits undertaken at the beginning  
of May. 

State Update 

Platinum Advisors, Alameda CTC’s state lobbying firm, provided the following 
summary of state activities. 

As the first part of this legislative year wraps up, the following bill deadlines must be met 
or a bill becomes a two-year bill that can be revisited next year. 

• April 26 – Last day for policy committees to hear and report to fiscal committees 
fiscal bills introduced in their house. 

• May 3 – Last day for policy committees to hear and report to the Floor non-fiscal 
bills introduced in their house. 

• May 17 – Last day for fiscal committees to hear and report to the Floor bills 
introduced in their house.  

• May 31 – Last day for bills to be passed out of their house of origin. 

Revenue:  With recent revenue receipts falling below projections by about $2 billion, the 
State’s focus is now April which is the highest revenue month of the year.  State 
Controller Betty Yee has continued the tradition of posting daily income tax receipts for 
April.  In the 2017-18 fiscal year April income tax revenue reached $14.2 billion, and the 
projected target for April 2019 is $15 billion.  These receipts directly influence the May 
Revise which came out in mid-May.  Staff will provide an update on the May Revise at 
the Commission meeting. 

Budget 

Budget Discussions:  Budget subcommittees met on a myriad of issues over the past few 
weeks.  The following summarizes transportation-related budget hearing issues: 

• Cap & Trade Expenditure Plan:  Both the Senate Subcommittee #2 and the 
Assembly Subcommittee #3 reviewed the Administration’s proposed use of cap 
& trade auction revenue.  Both subcommittees deferred action on this item.  It is 
normal for the Senate and Assembly to hold this item open while both houses 
and the Administration negotiate spending priorities.  Over the past several 
years, it is not uncommon for negotiations to stretch well into August.   

An important topic of these hearings focused on how much auction revenue will 
be available for the coming year.  The Governor’s budget assumes that a total 
of $2.1 billion in auction revenue will be available in 2019-20, combined with 
unspent revenue in the current fiscal year will provide $2.4 billion for the various 
programs.  The $2.1 billion amount assumes that all 2019-20 allowances will be 

Page 94



 

sold at the minimum auction price.  The LAO forecast is higher.  The LAO 
estimates that over the current fiscal year and 2019-20 auction revenue will 
exceed the Administration’s estimate by $800 million.  While the LAO cautions the 
Legislature regarding the uncertainty of auction returns, the Legislature plans to 
use the LAO’s forecast when developing its expenditure plan priorities.  This 
means more money will be available for the numerous budget requests. 

• Work Force Training:  The Governor’s budget proposed allocating $27 million cap 
& trade auction revenue in 2019-20, and about $25 million per year for the 
following four fiscal years for workforce training programs.  These funds would be 
administered by the California Workforce Development Board for various pre-
apprenticeship programs.  This includes $10 million annually for the next five years 
for the High Road Training Partnership (HRTP), which includes providing a total of 
2,000 pre-apprenticeship slots for non-construction industries that have been 
affected by the state’s effort to reduce GHG emissions.  One of the sectors 
targeted by the Administration is public transit’s transition to zero emission 
vehicles.  HRTP would provide funding for apprenticeships that train bus service 
technicians to become electric bus mechanics. Questions about nexus to the 
use the funds for these purposes arose, and Senator Wieckowski moved to simply 
keep this item open while budget negotiations continue.  Alameda CTC has 
adopted a legislative platform that supports funding for apprenticeship and 
workforce training programs. 
 

• Transportation:  In mid-April, Senate Sub 2 and Assembly Sub 3 reviewed the 
relatively few transportation related budget items.  Both the Senate and 
Assembly approved the budget amount of $2 billion in Road Maintenance and 
Rehabilitation Account funds to Caltrans for state and local SB 1 programs.  In 
addition, SB 1 funds will reach nearly $5 billion in 2019-20 and will be spent as 
follows: 

Page 95



 

 

• Active Transportation Program:  Senate and Assembly Subcommittees also held 
an informational hearing on the LAO’s review of the Active Transportation 
Program (ATP).  Overall the ATP is performing as expected with 75% of funding 
being awarded to infrastructure projects, and 88% of the projects benefiting a 
disadvantage community.  The LAO found that in the first funding cycle the 
project size was fairly small at an average of $1.3 million, but the project size is 
starting to grow in subsequent cycles.  The LAO does recommend that the 
legislature consider the following changes: 

o Require the collection of better data and benefits.   
o Consider whether the statewide component should focus on larger, more 

transformative projects. 
o Provide additional flexibility to metropolitan planning organizations (MPO) 

to select projects that are the highest priority for the region. 
 

Page 96



 

While no changes are currently being proposed, committee staff in both the 
Senate and Assembly point to the LAO’s recommendation to provide MPOs 
greater flexibility.  Staff points to the possibility for the statewide component to 
focus on transformative projects and give the MPO’s the flexibility to fund small 
projects that are consistent with regional priorities.  If this change is made, staff 
encouraged consideration of allocating a greater percentage of funds to the 
MPO program. 

Legislation 

The following summarizes legislative action on the Wayfair descision and Table 1 
includes bill recommendations for Alameda CTC consideration.    

Wayfair:  AB 147 (Burke & McGuire) was unanimously approved by the legislature and is 
signed by the Governor.  This bill will enact changes to implement the South Dakota v. 
Wayfair decision.  Under Wayfair, the U.S. Supreme Court found that online retailers are 
required to collect and remit sales tax regardless of whether the online retailer has a 
physical presence in the state where the order is delivered. 

AB 147 includes a $500,000 statewide threshold.  State and local sales taxes would both 
be collected once an online retailer reaches a statewide total of $500,000 in sales.  This 
bill also requires sales tax to be collected on all sales made through an intermediary, 
such as eBay or Amazon.  Under AB 147 for an entity that sells items through a 
“marketplace facilitator,” such as eBay, the marketplace facilitator is required to 
collect and remit the tax on all sales regardless of the threshold.  Additional sales tax 
revenue for Alameda County will be generated through this legislation. 

Table 1 

Bill Number Bill Information Recommendation 
SB 328 
(Portantino) 

This bill would require the school 
day for middle schools and high 
schools, including those operated 
as charter schools, to begin no 
earlier than 8:30 a.m. by July 1, 
2022, or the date on which a 
school district’s or charter school’s 
respective collective bargaining 
agreement that is operative on 
January 1, 2020, expires, whichever 
is later, except for rural school 
districts. 

This same bill was introduced in the 17-18 
legislative session and was vetoed by the 
Governor.  Alameda CTC took an 
oppose position on this bill due to the 
negative impact it would have on transit 
operators trying to provide school 
services.  If the change of time were 
instituted per the bill requirements, it 
would create operational, service and 
fiscal impacts to AC Transit and other bus 
operators.   

Alameda CTC’s 2019 legislative platform 
supports cost effective delivery of 
projects and programs.  This bill would 
reduce efficiencies and increase costs for 
bus transit operators that provide school 
supportive services funded by Alameda 

Page 97

http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB328
http://leginfo.legislature.ca.gov/faces/billTextClient.xhtml?bill_id=201920200SB328


 

Table 1 

Bill Number Bill Information Recommendation 
County’s transportation sales tax 
measures.   

Staff recommends an oppose position on 
this bill.   

 
Policy 

The California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) requested public comment and 
held two workshops in April regarding the MacArthur Maze Vertical Clearance Project. 
The proposed project is intended to increase the vertical clearance at three locations 
within the MacArthur Maze interchange. Alameda CTC has submitted a letter to 
Caltrans commenting on the project.  While the proposed project has been put on hold 
as the Caltrans project team evaluates comments, questions, and concerns from the 
community, stakeholder groups, cities, and public agencies, it is not clear when the 
project may be reinitiated.  The AC Transit Board adopted a resolution (Attachment B) 
requesting transit priority improvements to mitigate congestion associated with 
MacArthur maze vertical clearance project.  This resolution is being considered for 
support by several cities in the MacArthur Maze highway corridors and staff 
recommends that Alameda CTC take a position to support the resolution and write a 
letter to AC Transit transmitting its support.  
 
Fiscal Impact: There is no fiscal impact associated with the requested action. 

Attachments: 

A. Alameda CTC 2019 Legislative Program 
B. AC Transit Board Resolution on MacArthur Maze 
C. Alameda CTC Comment Letter on SB 50 

Page 98



2019 Alameda County Transportation Commission Legislative Program 
The legislative program herein supports Alameda CTC’s transportation vision below adopted for the 2016 Countywide Transportation Plan: 

“Alameda County will be served by a premier transportation system that supports a vibrant and livable Alameda County through a connected and integrated multimodal transportation 
system promoting sustainability, access, transit operations, public health and economic opportunities. Our vision recognizes the need to maintain and operate our existing transportation infrastructure 
and services while developing new investments that are targeted, effective, financially sound and supported by appropriate land uses. Mobility in Alameda County will be guided by transparent 
decision-making and measureable performance indicators. Our transportation system will be: Multimodal; Accessible, Affordable and Equitable for people of all ages, incomes, abilities and 
geographies; Integrated with land use patterns and local decision-making; Connected across the county, within and across the network of streets, highways and transit, bicycle and pedestrian routes; 
Reliable and Efficient; Cost Effective; Well Maintained; Safe; Supportive of a Healthy and Clean Environment.” 

Issue Priority Strategy Concepts 

Transportation 
Funding 

Increase transportation funding 

Oppose efforts to repeal transportation revenues streams enacted through SB1.
Support efforts that protect against transportation funding diversions.
Support efforts to lower the two-thirds voter threshold for voter-approved transportation measures.
Support the implementation of more stable and equitable long-term funding sources for transportation.
Ensure fair share of sales tax allocations from new laws and regulations
Seek, acquire, accept and implement grants to advance project and program delivery.

Protect and enhance voter-approved funding 

Support legislation and increased funding from new and/or flexible funding sources to Alameda County for operating,
maintaining, restoring, and improving transportation infrastructure and operations.
Support increases in federal, state, and regional funding to expedite delivery of Alameda CTC projects and programs,
including funding to expand the Affordable Student Transit Pass program.
Support efforts that give priority funding to voter-approved measures and oppose those that negatively affect the ability
to implement voter-approved measures.
Support efforts that streamline financing and delivery of transportation projects and programs.
Support rewarding Self-Help Counties and states that provide significant transportation funding into
transportation systems.
Support statewide principles for federal surface transportation reauthorization and/or infrastructure bills that expand
funding and delivery opportunities for Alameda County

Project Delivery 

and Operations 

Advance innovative project delivery 

Support environmental streamlining and expedited project delivery, including contracting flexibility and innovative
project delivery methods.
Support high-occupancy vehicle (HOV)/express lane expansion in Alameda County and the Bay Area, and efforts that
promote effective implementation.
Support efforts to allow local agencies to advertise, award, and administer state highway system contracts largely
funded by local agencies.

Ensure cost-effective project delivery 
Support efforts that reduce project and program implementation costs.
Support funding and policies to implement transportation projects that create jobs and economic growth, including for
apprenticeships and workforces training programs.

Protect the efficiency of managed lanes 

Support HOV/managed lane policies that protect toll operators’ management of lane operations and performance, toll
rate setting and toll revenue reinvestments, deployment of new technologies and improved enforcement.
Support legislation that clarifies and enables effective toll processing, resolution of unpaid tolls, and interoperability.
Oppose legislation that degrades HOV lanes that could lead to congestion and decreased efficiency.

Reduce barriers to the implementation of 
transportation and land use investments 

Support legislation that increases flexibility and reduces barriers for infrastructure improvements that link transportation,
housing, and jobs.

1111 Broadway, Suite 800, Oakland, CA  94607 
510.208.7400 

www.AlamedaCTC.org 

8.1A 

Page 99



Issue Priority Strategy Concepts 

Multimodal 
Transportation, 
Land Use and Safety 

 Support local flexibility and decision-making regarding land-uses for transit oriented development (TOD) and priority 
development areas (PDAs). 

 Support funding opportunities for TOD and PDA implementation, including transportation corridor investments that link PDAs. 

Expand multimodal systems, shared mobility and 
safety 

 Support policies that provide increased flexibility for transportation service delivery through programs that address the 
needs of commuters, youth, seniors, people with disabilities and low-incomes, and do not create unfunded mandates. 

 Support policies that enable shared mobility innovations while protecting the public interest, including allowing shared 
data (such as data from transportation network companies and app based carpooling companies) that could be used 
for transportation and land use planning and operational purposes.  

 Support investments in active transportation, including for improved safety and Vision Zero strategies. 
 Support investments in transportation for transit-dependent communities that provide enhanced access to goods, 

services, jobs, and education. 
 Support parity in pre-tax fringe benefits for public transit, carpooling, and vanpooling and other modes with parking. 
 Support legislation to modernize the Congestion Management Program, supporting the linkage between transportation, 

housing, and multi-modal performance monitoring 

Climate Change and 

Technology 
Support climate change legislation and 
technologies to reduce greenhouse gas (GHG) 
emissions 

 Support funding for infrastructure, operations, and programs to relieve congestion, improve air quality, reduce emissions, 
expand resiliency and support economic development, including transitioning to zero emissions transit fleets. 

 Support rewarding Self-Help Counties with cap-and-trade funds for projects and programs that are partially locally funded 
and reduce GHG emissions. 

 Support emerging technologies such as alternative fuels and fueling technology to reduce GHG emissions. 
 Support legislation and policies to facilitate deployment of connected and autonomous vehicles in Alameda County, 

including data sharing that will enable long-term planning. 
 Support the expansion of zero emissions vehicle charging stations. 
 Support efforts that ensure Alameda County jurisdictions are eligible for state funding related to the definition of 

disadvantaged communities used in state screening tools. 

Goods Movement Expand goods movement funding and policy 
development 

 Support a multimodal goods movement system and efforts that enhance the economy, local communities, and 
the environment. 

 Support goods movement policies that enhance Bay Area goods movement planning, funding, delivery, and advocacy.  
 Support legislation and efforts that improve the efficiency and connectivity of the goods movement system, including 

passenger rail connectivity. 
 Ensure that Alameda County goods movement needs are included in and prioritized in regional, state and federal 

goods movement planning and funding processes. 
 Support rewarding Self-Help Counties that directly fund goods movement infrastructure and programs. 
 Leverage local funds to the maximum extent possible to implement goods movement investments in Alameda County 

through grants and partnerships. 

Partnerships Expand partnerships at the local, regional, state 
and federal levels 

 Support efforts that encourage regional and mega-regional cooperation and coordination to develop, promote, 
and fund solutions to regional transportation problems and support governmental efficiencies and cost savings. 

 Partner with community and national organizations and other partners to increase transportation funding for Alameda 
CTC’s multiple projects and programs and to support local jobs. 

 Support efforts to maintain and expand local-, women-, minority- and small-business participation in competing 
for contracts. 

Page 100



Resolution No. 19-015 

ALAMEDA-CONTRA COSTA TRANSIT DISTRICT 
RESOLUTION NO. 19-015 

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING TRANSIT PRIORITY IMPROVEMENTS TO MITIGATE CONGESTION 
ASSOCIATED WITH MACARTHUR MAZE VERTICAL CLEARANCE PROJECT  

WHEREAS, the California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) has issued a draft 
Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for a proposed project to increase vertical clearance on some 
roadways within the Macarthur Maze; and 

WHEREAS, the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District (District or AC Transit) operates 
nearly 1,000 bus trips each day through the Macarthur Maze, carrying more than 14,000 
passengers through the interchange each weekday; and 

WHEREAS, the construction associated with the project will likely divert significant 
automobile, freight, and transit traffic onto streets in the cities of Berkeley, Emeryville, and 
Oakland; and 

WHEREAS, this change in traffic patterns will result in significant delays for transit 
operations and customers as well as negatively impact conditions for bicyclists and pedestrians; 
and 

WHEREAS, once complete, the project will lead to an increase in freight traffic through 
the interchange, competing for already limited space for transit and leading to delays and 
increased operating costs for the District; and 

WHEREAS, the region has made relieving congestion and reducing automobile traffic 
across the San Francisco-Oakland Bay Bridge a priority, including the completion of the 
Metropolitan Transportation Commission’s Core Capacity Transit Study and through the recent 
passage of Regional Measure 3 and; and 

WHEREAS, funding from Regional Measure 3 will result in a 30-percent increase in AC 
Transit Transbay service through the area which should be supported through opportunities to 
prioritize this increase in transit capacity; and  

WHEREAS, the Alameda County Transportation Commission (ACTC) has prioritized 
improvements to local bus transit service through its County-wide Transportation Plan, which 
has resulted in such efforts as the San Pablo Avenue Corridor Project; and 

WHEREAS, the District plays a critical role in reducing congestion in the region and will 
continue to do so through planned efforts detailed in documents such as the Major Corridors 
Study; and  

WHEREAS, the inclusion of elements supporting transit priority and facilitating complete 
streets (include transit, bicycles, and pedestrians) within the Macarthur Maze Vertical Clearance 

8.1B

Page 101



Resolution No. 19-015 

Project is necessary mitigation for the impacts from construction and increased freight 
movement through the interchange; and 

WHEREAS, Caltrans has extended the public comment period for the Draft Environmental 
Impact Report to April 24 at 11:59 p.m. with public hearings to be held in Emeryville and Oakland 
on April 10 and 11, respectively; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, the Board of Directors of the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District 
does resolve as follows: 

Section 1. Request that Caltrans include transit-only lanes on all roadways in the 
project where AC Transit currently operates transit service. 

Section 2.   Request that Caltrans include measures to mitigate transit service 
disruption and prioritize transit service in identified mitigations during the construction phase of 
the project through improvements including but not limited to: dedicated transit lanes, transit 
signal priority, transit queue-jump lanes, bus stop optimization and traffic signal 
coordination/actuation. 

Section 3. Request that Caltrans coordinate with the cities of Berkeley, Emeryville & 
Oakland to provide dedicated transit lane access to the Bay Bridge. 

Section 4.  Request that Caltrans ensure any elements of the project or mitigations 
associated with the project or its construction conform to and support existing regional plans 
being developed or already adopted by MTC; ACTC; the District; and the cities of Berkeley, 
Emeryville, and Oakland.  

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 24th day of April 2019. 

Joe Wallace, President 

Attest: 

Linda A. Nemeroff, District Secretary 

I, Linda A. Nemeroff, District Secretary for the Alameda-Contra Costa Transit District, do 
hereby certify that the foregoing Resolution was passed and adopted at a regular meeting of the 
Board of Directors held on the 24th day of April, 2019, by the following roll call vote: 

AYES: 
NOES: 

Page 102



Resolution No. 19-015 

ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

Linda A. Nemeroff, District Secretary 

Approved as to Form and Content: 

Denise C. Standridge, General Counsel 

Page 103



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
This page intentionally left blank 

Page 104



Page 105

8.1C



Page 106


	6.1_COMM_Commission_Meeting_Minutes_20190425v
	6.2_COMM_Community_Advisory_Committee_Appointments_20190523
	6.3_COMM_Government_Claims_Act_FY2018-19_3rd_Qtr_Report_20190523
	6.4_COMM_AlamedaCTC_Annual_Report_20190523
	6.5_COMM_FY2019-20_Budget_20190523
	6.6_COMM_FY18-19_3rd_Qtr_Financial Report_20190523
	6.7_COMM_FY18-19_Sales_Tax_Budget_Update_20190523
	6.8_COMM_FY18-19_Q3_Investment_Report_20190523
	6.9_COMM_Investment_Policy_2019_20190523
	6.10_COMM_Admin_Amendment_No5_to_ABE_PSA_20190523
	6.11_COMM_I-580_PC_EL_Ops_Update_FebMarch2019Stats_20190523
	6.12_COMM_EnvironmentalDocReview_20190523a
	6.13_COMM_SR 84_Closeout_20190523v
	6.13C_1210002_SR84Exp_SSeg_20190111.pdf
	Slide Number 1
	Slide Number 2


	8.1_COMM_LegislativeUpdate_May2019_20190523vv



